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Independent Auditor’s Report

Ernst & Young
11 Mounts Bay Road
Perth WA 6000 Australia
ﬁ’i GPO Box M939 Perth WA 6843
Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Dragon
Mining Limited
(incorporated in Australia with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Dragon Mining Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries
(the Group) set out on pages 144 to 230, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing issued by the International Federation
of Accountants. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in Australia, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment
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Why significant
AR S

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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As disclosed in Note 8 Property, Plant and Equipment,
the Group recognised property, plant and equipment,
including capitalised mine properties, of AU$46.246
million as at 31 December 2021.

International Financial Reporting Standards require
an assessment of indicators of impairment annually or
more frequently if indicators of impairment exist, for
each cash generating unit (CGU).
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

We performed an independent analysis for indicators
of impairment, which included considering the
performance of the assets and external market
conditions.

Our audit procedures included an evaluation of
the assumptions and methodology applied in the
recoverable value assessment, with emphasis on key
inputs such as gold price forecasts, operating costs,
discount rates and reserve estimation.

FAM B ALY SOEAT TR LT > B R
B RAME T AR -

FA B0 A w4 Al W o] B (R A6 o T )
R J7 ik > B LE S I SR A R > A AR
B~ BB RA - BB R kA T

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
AR A R A A

Annual Report 2021
—F = — R



Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Why significant
GILESS
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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The Group’s assessment of impairment indicators
included an evaluation of asset operating performance
and market capitalisation.

During the year, the Group assessed that indicators
of impairment existed requiring an impairment test to
determine the recoverable amount of the Vammala and
Faboliden CGUs.

The Group assessed the recoverable amount of
the Vammala CGU using a Value in Use (VIU)
methodology and the Fiboliden CGU using a Fair
Value Less Cost of Disposal methodology (FVLCD)
as disclosed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SR I 0 5 6 3 0 00 2SR T
A -

R EREREEWEN ST > T BT W
st > LAREE Vammala M Faboliden i 4 & A B A7 1 AT 1
o] 4278 o

42 E % A 0F R 8 (B % BEAS Vammala 31 4 & A B0
B AT i) 88 > DA KRR T T (E B B AR A 1 BT A
Faboliden®d 4 & A8 B0 0y vl Uk 0] 458 - Q%5 A B R
HMEESHT I #% -

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

We involved our valuation specialists to assist in
evaluating, amongst other things, the discount rates
applied, foreign exchange rates and gold price
forecasts.

For the Fiboliden CGU, we assessed the competence,
capability and objectivity of the external experts who
compiled the Independent Expert’s Valuation and
engaged our valuation specialists to assess against
comparable transaction data and related market
participant information.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

Why significant
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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No impairment or impairment reversal was recognised
during the year.

The assessment of the recoverable amounts was
determined to be a key audit matter as it involves
significant judgement. Auditing the recoverable amount
of Vammala and Fiboliden CGUs is complex and
subjective due to the use of forward-looking estimates,
which are inherently difficult to determine with
precision. There is also a level of judgement applied by
the Group in determining the key inputs used in these
forward-looking estimates.

Key assumptions, judgements and estimates used in
the formulation of the Group’s impairment assessment
and the impact of reasonable possible changes are
disclosed in Note 8.
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

We performed sensitivity analysis to evaluate the
impact of reasonably possible changes in key
assumptions such as commodity price forecasts,
discount rates, production, operating costs and capital
expenditure.

We also considered the adequacy of the financial
report disclosures included in Note 8 regarding the
impairment testing approach, key assumptions and
sensitivity analysis.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)
Rehabilitation provisions

Why significant
GIERS

T S A M B ()

BEETEEE)
BERERES

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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As disclosed in Note 12 Provisions, the Group recorded
rehabilitation provisions totalling AU$24.028 million
as at 31 December 2021 relating to the mine sites and
processing facilities in Sweden and Finland.

As disclosed in Note 1t Restoration and Rehabilitation
Costs, the calculation of these provisions required
judgment in estimating the future costs, the timing
of future costs, inflation rates utilised and the
determination of an appropriate rate to discount the
future costs to their present value.

The Group reviews rehabilitation obligations that
have arisen semi-annually, or as new information
becomes available, including an assessment of the
underlying assumptions used, effects of any changes
in local regulations and the expected approach to
rehabilitation.
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We consider this a key audit matter because estimating
the costs associated with these future activities requires
judgment and estimation for factors such as timing of
when rehabilitation will take place, the extent of the
rehabilitation and restoration activities and economic
assumptions such as inflation rates and discount rates
which are used to determine the provision amount.
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

We evaluated the legal and/or constructive obligations
with respect to the rehabilitation for all mine sites
and processing facilities, the intended method of
rehabilitation and the associated cost estimates.

We assessed the Group’s calculation of the
rehabilitation cost estimates and obtained evidence to
support material movements during the year.

We assessed the competence, capability and
objectivity of the external experts who compiled the
data that supported the cost estimates and provisions
and considered the appropriateness of their work in
conducting our procedures.

We involved our valuation specialists to assist in
evaluating, amongst other things, the discount rates
applied.
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We assessed the accuracy of the calculations used to
determine the rehabilitation provision including the
economic assumptions applied.

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
relating to the recognition and measurement of
rehabilitation provisions in Note 12.

A FEAG T P e 1R 2R M 2 ) R HEREE -
5 T 0 RS ik -

BTG T Y 27 A B O SAR
R R IR S -

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

Annual Report 2021
ZF — — £ FH#



138
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)
Going concern

Why significant
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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As disclosed in Note 1b Basis of Preparation, the Group
has determined that the financial statements should
be prepared on a going concern basis following an
assessment of their cash flow forecast covering a twelve
month period from the signing date of the financial
statements.
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The Group’s cash flow forecast has incorporated
various estimates and assumptions including
production income and expenses and the anticipated
timing and quantum of environmental bond payments.
As disclosed Note 1d Liquidity Management, the
Group has excluded cash flows associated with
the commencement of full-scale mining activity
at Faboliden, including any bond payments or
consideration of potential legal outcomes.

The Group believes it has sufficient liquidity based
on the undrawn loan facilities disclosed in Note 13
Interest Bearing Liabilities, and the expected cash to
be generated from operations to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due for the following twelve
months.

Given the significance of the considerations in
evaluating the Group’s assessment we considered
going concern to be a key audit matter.
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We obtained an understanding of the Group’s cash
flow forecast preparation process.
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We assessed the reasonableness of the inputs and
assumptions used in the cash flow forecast against
historical performance and the Group's strategic plans.

We obtained and reviewed the Group’s legal
confirmations and contingent liability assessment.

We reperformed the underlying calculations used in
the Group’s assessment of the cash flow forecast and
performed sensitivity testing of the inputs used.

We assessed the key assumptions in the cash flow
forecast, including those pertaining to production and
the timing of significant payments.

We agreed the details of the Group’s loan facilities,
including the amendment and extension of these
facilities to supporting documentation.

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
relating to going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)
Carrying value of inventories

Why significant
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRAM ) 2 ] 3 % o] 6 2 S JH

As disclosed in Note 6 Inventories, the Group held
inventories as at 31 December 2021 of AU$19.679
million, which related to ore and concentrate
stockpiles, gold in circuit, raw materials and stores.

Inventory is a significant asset which requires
judgement in determining an appropriate costing basis
and assessing whether the carrying value is recorded at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Accordingly,
we considered the carrying value of inventories to be a
key audit matter.
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A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

We obtained an understanding of the Group's
processes in respect of inventory valuation.

We assessed the accuracy of the Group’s inventory
valuation model including the costs, assumptions
and methodologies used in the model for ore and
concentrate stockpiles, and gold in circuit.

We selected a sample of raw materials and stores
inventory items to evaluate whether, based on their
nature, costs were correctly determined and allocated.

We re-performed calculations to confirm that
inventories were recorded at the lower of cost and net
realisable value, including evaluating gold price and
cost to complete assumptions.

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in Note 6 Inventories.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

Other information consists of the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors of the Company
are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
International Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT’D)

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
AR A R A A

T S A B (A

BBEHETREMBRENEE(H)

TR B AR B A AR DU
MR > HE GRS B AR AT
eI B R R o

RS 5875 P EORE A0 9 BTt
it At P BB 0 A A

B RN R E Rt S B R G AR
A o ARYE P O T R IR R E
I A A A S o TE R DU R 9 O AN Tl
FEVE - fEm AT REEECE AR
BRI F RN o MR IR EE A AE
HRAMEENE > A BB S
SR8 13 T RAR S B i P A A B
o A A B SER A > HIBRAM M 3%
FIMOR L o FAMA A a2 2L A A% B
fili it H LR BT BORS BO A SRS © SR1 > R
ARETHAE UL AT R B AR FAR e

2 o

AR AR A B R AR S 07 30 - A5
IR - AFEBER - LR G B IR 2
T S BREE 5 M IA

B B R N R B T B Y B s £ S
R - BERNFEE > DUEREGS
MBS IMEREREA - HMAE HEMF
ARG~ R AEAT o B AR
ARIERIEAL -

Annual Report 2021
—F = — R



Independent Auditor’s Report (Cont'd)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT’D)

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management
Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Jemma K Newton.

Ernst & Young
Perth, Western Australia
23 March 2022

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Revenue from customers
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other income

Exploration expenditure

Management and administration
expenses

Exploration and evaluation written off

Operating expenses

Finance costs

Foreign exchange gain

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit after income tax

Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the
parent (cents per share)

Basic and diluted earnings per share

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
AR A R A A

bR AR
HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
2021 2020
20215 20204
Note AU$’000 AU$’000
Bt 51 FET TFoC
s 21 50,003 69,255
FHEE AR 2(a) (41,753) (51,599)
EF 8,250 17,656
oAt 25 2(b) 9 12
HAhse A 2(c) 805 314
W 3 (458) (626)
B RATER ¥
2(d) (4,356) (4,269)
DR B A A 8 2(d) (561) (2,381)
—siil:E 5 2(d) (220) (175)
PAHS i A 2(e) (29) (133)
1N 5 ] 541 111
BB AR R 3,981 10,509
JIrAS BB 3 3 (3,689) (316)
BT EH&RR 292 10,193
BATEBERISEAEMWN
FRBF (4, 1]K)
g I R AR T B ) 19 0.19 7.34
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Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income 4% Hifl 2 Wi e 25 %6

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Profit after income tax (brought forward)

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Net other comprehensive loss to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income
for the period

Profit attributable to:
Members of Dragon Mining Limited

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Members of Dragon Mining Limited

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET Foe
BT BB &5 R (F&a) 292 10,193
Hb2EBA
AR R 3 B2
1A 2t HIEAE 2 I A
AV A SE SRR 1Y) FEE 58,25 %8
(230) (79)
BREZPEEFIER
BERENEM2EER
BE(BEEE) (230) (79)
HAZHEWR AL
62 10,114
BT AL FEMRER
BEE A PR AR 292 10,193
292 10,193
LT ALEARE
PNt
BEERA PR A B3R 62 10,114
62 10,114
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146 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & B4Rt 3

As at 31 December 2021 A20214E12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204F
Note AU$’000 AU$'000
M EE FRET Tt
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents IE%&IE%%‘EF% 4 14,370 14,352
Trade and other receivables B 5y T HoAh S 5 5,225 6,278
Inventories ﬁﬁ 6 19,679 16,114
Other assets HoAh & 7 825 209
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS REBEEHAE 40,099 36,953
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant, and equipment Y2 ~ W Rttt 8 46,246 38,534
Mineral exploration and evaluation costs B )% & 7Tl A 9 1,625 3,989
Right-of-use assets I REE 10 2,043 377
Other assets Hopth B 7 5,287 5,544
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEELE 55,201 48,444
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 95,300 85,397
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables & 5 F FAth A A 11 5,496 6,548
Provisions Ec i 12 3,114 2,351
Interest bearing liabilities FHE AR 13 622 147
Other liabilities HoAh & ff 122 321
Current tax liability RN H B TE & (& 1,697 303
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES REBRERE 11,051 9,670
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES knBaBE
Provisions Ec i 12 22,889 19,025
Interest bearing liabilities FHEA 13 1,391 3,217
Other liabilities HoAth & £ - 7
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEBEEE 24,280 22,249
TOTAL LIABILITIES BfERE 35,331 31,919
NET ASSETS EEFE 59,969 53,478
EQUITY ER
Contributed equity HHRA 14 140,454 133,991
Reserves ettt 16 (760) (496)
Accumulated losses 5T (79,725) (80,017)
TOTAL EQUITY ERERE 59,969 53,478
Arthur George Dew Brett Robert Smith
IREEE
Director Director
HH HF
DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2021

At1 January 2020

Profit after income tax for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive profit
for the year

At 31 December 2020

At1 January 2021

Profit after income tax for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive profit
for the year

Shares issued
Share issue transaction costs
Share buy-back transactions

Total transactions with owners

At 31 December 2021

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

R20205151R

ERRTEHRER
Afb2mE#

FhemEH A%

20205128318

R2021E1518

R B A
Afb2mE#

Fh M A%
CEfRh
G GRYLIES
TR
L GINE L

R20215128318

22 /N 3 2a S
AR eI A

Ak

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE

147

Equity

Reserve

Convertible  Purchase of

Foreign Note Non- Treasury

Contributed ~ Accumulated Currency Premium  controlling Shares Total
Equity Losses Reserve Reserve Interest Reserve Equity

FERER

TEAZE LAt 3 B

EdRs  ZHER  MBRE EERE 0 RERRE  ROBE  BR4E
AU§'000 AU$000 AU$000 AU$000 AU$'000 AU$000 AUS$000
i
133,991 (90,210) (3,554) 2,068 1,069 - 43,364
- 10,193 - - - - 10,193
- - (79) - - - (79)
- 10,193 (79) - - - 10,114
133,991 (80,017) (3,033) 2,008 1,069 - 53478
133,991 (80,017) (3,633) 2,068 1,069 - 53478
- 292 - - - - 292
- - 230 - - - (230)
- 292 (230 - - - 62
6,862 - - - - - 6,862
(229) - - - - - (229)
(170) - - - - (34) (204)
6,463 - - - - (34) 6,429
140,454 (79,725) (3,863) 2,068 1,069 (34) 59,969
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=2 —— F F #H



148 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows HAEBRESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 WE20214E12 431 H L4
2021 2020
20216 20204
Note AU$’000 AU$’000
BT FET T

Cash flows from operating activities RETHRSRE

Receipts from customers lielE-ank el 51,487 68,539
Payments to suppliers and employees LI R S AR B ATk (39,6006) (47,056)
Payments for mineral exploration TR B AT 3K (1,223) (567)
Interest received B 3 12
Interest paid FLEBA X (15) (154)
Income taxes paid SRR (1,950) -
Net cash from operating activities RETHAERESFHE 4 8,696 20,774

Cash flows from investing activities REZHRERE

Payments for property, plant, and WY - W K

equipment B3 ARE (7,219) (3,632)
Proceeds from sale of property, SHEYIZE - BB K

plant, and equipment EEEes 374 2
Payments for development activities AL R T ) A1 3K (2,335) (7,667)
Payments for exploration and evaluation gl K g4k ] 3K (1,463) -
Payment of bonds (FETNEN - (23)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFARESFHE (10,643) (11,320
Cash flows from financing activities BMEETBHESRE
Lease liability payments & B A (1,501) (101
Repayment of loan facility fEHR K (3,000) (3,000)
Net proceeds from issue of shares AT IR T AS 3RH AR 6,633 -
Payments for share buy-back Je Ay ] B (204) -
Net cash from/(used in) financing REEBME(FTRERE

activities HREE 1,928 (3,101)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERREZEYWORD),

cash equivalents EnFEE 19 6,353
Cash and cash equivalents at the SRR B K Bl S

beginning of the year 14,352 8,182
Effects of exchange rate changes on EE 45 ) 3 3 < S Bl 4

cash and cash equivalents S R 37 (183)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of HIFRRERHESZEY
the year 4 14,370 14,352

DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

Reporting Entity

Dragon Mining Limited (the “Company” or the
“Parent Entity”) was incorporated as an Australian
Public Company, limited by shares on 23 April 1990,
and is subject to the requirements of the Australian
Corporations Act 2001 as governed by the Australian
Securities and Investments Commission. The
Company is domiciled in Australia and its registered
office is located at Unit 202, Level 2, 39 Mends Street,
South Perth, Western Australia 6151 Australia.

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors
on 23 March 2022.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December
2021, comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Consolidated Entity”
or the “Group”). The Group is a for profit entity,
primarily involved in gold mining operations and
gold mineral exploration. The Company has direct
and indirect interests in its subsidiaries, all of which
have substantially similar characteristics to a private
company incorporated in Hong Kong, the particulars
of which are set out below:

Place and date of

1.

Fo o A 25 e Pk

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE

a)

AAEHRETESHBEREE

HEER
FEEVRA PR A ([ AN A 5[ B4
Al 1) 199044 A 23 H & it 557 £
—FEEJ%@?J’I'I/A%?VAE? > B A BRA
F] o S ZE ST I I 2001 4F 28\ E )
%ﬁm I ST M E R T AT

o AR RN FE M RS - HogE
ﬂ%%&?%@%ﬁﬁéumt 202, Level 2, 39
Mends Street, South Perth, Western
Australia 6151 Australia °

2@‘1%@2021 F12A31H ILFE
AR IR > ERBEEFHAMA
2022$3H 23 H PRk S e 55 o

AONFE B E20214F12 A31 H ILF
E’J,%:%Eﬁa%i&%%/@ﬁ$/\1&ﬁw
BT (FAEL 5 EH s AL
1) o AL A FIPEE R > A
L PR LS TRENE - AN
T ELRH O R B M M AR
A 1) LA B g S A BT I FA A
FRBRR AFFES > SEEHESIIT ¢

incorporation/

Nominal value of

Percentage of equity

registration and issued ordinary attributable to
Name place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
M
B AR BRITHE KDARL )
L BENH RANEE RAEDH IREK
Dragon Mining Australia - 100% Dormant
Investments Pty Ltd! 18 December 2008 LIE e 5
TR
2008412 118H
Dragon Mining Sweden SEK 100,000 100% Gold Production
(Sweden) AB 27 April 1993 100,000 4 2 [ WA E
i
199344 74270
Viking Gold & Sweden SEK 100,000 100% Dormant
Prospecting AB 3 April 1996 100,000% 4 5t =3
Bii
1996%F4H3 H
Dragon Mining Oy Finland EUR 100,000 100% Gold Production
24 March 1993 100,000 ¢ EELE
1 |
199343240
FEEVEA R Hong Kong HK$1.00 100% Dormant
(Dragon Mining Limited)? 17 May 2017 1.00% 70 BT AT
ik
20174854170

1 Deregistered on 9 May 2021

2 For translation purposes

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

[N <

B’ A R 2~ A

1 4202145 A 9 H B & fit

2 MRS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

b)

Basis of Preparation

Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are general purpose
financial statements prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”),
International Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

All IFRSs effective for the accounting period
commencing 1 January 2021 have been adopted by
the Group and, except as noted below, accounting
policies have been consistently applied throughout
all periods presented. The adoption of the new and
revised standards and interpretations effective 1
January 2021 had no material impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. The Group’s
accounting policies have been updated to reflect the
new standards where applicable.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Australian dollars (“AUD”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise specified.

The Group has adopted the going concern basis of
preparation for the preparation of this Annual Report.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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HE20214F12 31 H IEFE

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF 1. ARERRIESHHEIME(E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Basis of Consolidation

Control is achieved when the Company is exposed,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and
only if the Company has:

e power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);

* exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns.

When the Company has less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights in an investee, the Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

e the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

e rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

e the Company’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The Company re-assesses whether it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Company obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
B A R 2 A

mEEE

] A2 [m] 3 o A A [k LB
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HER 5
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EHIE TR A H BB R g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(Y]

Basis of Consolidation (Cont’d)

The income, expenses, assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the Company’s Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss or the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position from the date the Company gains
control until the date the Company ceases to have
control.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Company’s
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the
Company are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Company loses control of a subsidiary, the
Company:

e derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary;

e derecognises the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest;

e derecognises the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity;

e recognises the fair value of any investment
retained;

e recognises the fair value of the consideration
received;

e recognises any surplus or deficit in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss; and

e reclassifies the Company’s share of items
previously recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss or retained earnings as appropriate.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less
impairment in the Company’s Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Liquidity Management

The Group achieved a profit before tax of AU$3.981
million (31 December 2020: AU$10.509 million)
and a net profit after income tax of AU$0.292
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: net profit after tax AU$10.193
million). At 31 December 2021, the Group has cash
and equivalents of AU$14.370 million (31 Dec 2020:
AU$14.352 million), including the restricted use net
proceeds from the placement of AU$6.633 million
(“Net Proceeds”). In addition, the Company has an
unsecured AU$12.000 million Loan Facility with AP
Finance Limited (together the “Available Funds”).
After year end, the Loan Facility repayment date
was extended from 31 December 2022 to 30 June
2023. The Group has a working capital surplus of
AU$29.048 million (31 December 2020: AU$27.283
million) and is debt free at the date of this Annual
Report.

The Company has prepared a cash flow forecast
(“Forecast”) extending for at least 12-months from the
signing date of the financial report (“Forecast Period”).
The Forecast includes the following significant
assumptions:

e based on budgeted production forecasts, the
Group’s activities are expected to generate
positive operating cash flows.

e the Company will continue to support the
Swedish operations at below break-even to
maintain operational readiness pending approval
of the Company’s Environmental Permit
(“Permit”) application for Faboliden.

e Excludes cash flows associated with commencing
full-scale mining activities at Faboliden including
any bond payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

d

Liquidity Management (Cont’d)

e the timing of additional environmental bond
payments (“Bond Payments”) is ultimately
determined by the relevant authority. The
Forecast includes approximately AU$7.8 million
of Bond Payments which include:

o Jokisivu — 3.4 million EUR (approximately
AU$5.4 million) contained in permit order
16; and

o Vammala 1.4 million EUR (approximately
AUS$2.4 million) bond increase.

On 26 March 2021, the Company submitted an
appeal of permit order 16 to the Administrative Court.
The forecast assumes a hearing date will be set within
the Forecast Period.

While the Forecast demonstrates the Company will
not need to access its Loan Facility, if the Group’s
Finnish operations fail to achieve the anticipated
production and cash flow outcomes, the Company
may be required to make drawdowns from its Loan
Facility.

Based on the Forecast, the expected positive cash
margins generated from Finnish operations and
Available Funds, the Directors consider these are
reasonable grounds to believe the Company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Company anticipates its application for an
Environmental Permit will be determined following
the Main Court Hearing which was deferred from
14 March 2022 to an unknown date in April 2022.
During the year, the County Administration Board
(“CAB”) also submitted a statement confirming
that they deemed the Permit permissible provided
certain conditions were met. The Company has
submitted documents to the Swedish Land and
Environmental Court (“Environmental Court”)
proposing an environmental bond of 64.0 million
SEK (approximately AU$9.9 million), consisting of an
upfront payment of 7.0 million SEK (approximately
AU$1.1 million) plus a variable cost of 2.6 SEK
(approximately AU$0.4) per tonne of waste rock
mined. This results in linear down payments of up
to 55.0 million SEK (approximately AU$8.6 million)
over the first 5-7 years of operation. While a Bond
Payment will be required, the final magnitude is
uncertain.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF 1. ARERRIESHHEIME(E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer. The Group
recognises revenue from the sale of gold bullion and
concentrate when control of the product has been
transferred to the customer.

Concentrate sales

Concentrate is sold to a third-party through a standard
Incoterm Delivery-At-Place (“DAP”) agreement. Once
the concentrate has been delivered, the Group has
met its performance obligations and control passes.
Revenue is recognised based on the estimated final
settlement price and is determined with reference
to the forward gold price. Adjustments are made for
variations in assay and weight between delivery and
final settlement. The final settlement price received
is based on the monthly average London Metal
Exchange (“LME”) gold price for the month following
delivery. Adjustments relating to quotational period
pricing are recognised and measured in accordance
with the policy at note 1(i).

Bullion sales

Bullion is sold on the market through the Group’s
metal account. The only performance obligation
under the contract is the sale of gold bullion. Revenue
from bullion sales is recognised at a point in time
when control passes to the buyer. This generally
occurs when the Group instructs the refiner to
transfer the gold to the customer by crediting the
metal account of the customer. As all performance
obligations are satisfied at that time, there are
no remaining performance obligations under the
contract. The transaction price is determined at
transaction date and there are no further adjustments
to this price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

f)

Income Taxes

The income tax expense or benefit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the national income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to the temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and for unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences:

e except where the deferred income tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting or taxable profit or
loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of
unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent
it is probable that a taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences
and the carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused
tax losses can be utilised:

e except where the deferred income tax asset
relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit
or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF 1. ARERRIESHHEIME(E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Income Taxes (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets
is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the year when the asset is realised, or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxable authority.

Tax consolidation legislation

The Company implemented the Australian tax
consolidation legislation as of 1 July 2003. The
Company has applied the group allocation approach
in determining the appropriate amount of current
taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to members of the
tax consolidated group.

Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)
Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognised net of
the amount of GST except:

e where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods
and services is not recoverable from the tax
authority; and

e receivables and payables are stated with the
amount of GST included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

g

h)

Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) (Cont’d)

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables
or payables in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position.

Cash flows are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis and the
GST component of cash flows arising from investing
and financing activities, which is recoverable from or
payable to the tax authority, is classified as operating
cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of
the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the tax authority.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances
Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Company is
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which that entity operates. The
Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in
Australian dollars which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of
non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF 1. ARERRIESHHEIME(E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Group Companies

The results and financial position of all the
subsidiaries of the Company (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

e assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that reporting date;

e income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the rates prevailing on the
transaction date, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any monetary items that form part
of the net investment in a foreign entity are taken to
Shareholders’ Equity. When a foreign operation is
sold, or borrowings are repaid the proportionate share
of such exchange differences are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate at the reporting date.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at their
transaction price and other receivables at fair value.
Receivables that are held to collect contractual cash
flows and are expected to give rise to cash flows
representing solely payments of principal and interest
are classified and subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Receivables that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. This category includes trade receivables
relating to concentrate sales that are subject to
quotation period pricing.

The terms of the concentrate sales contract contain
provisional pricing arrangements. Adjustments to the
sales price are based on movements in metal prices
up to the date of final pricing. The final settlement is
based on the monthly average LME gold price for the
month following delivery (the “quotational period”).
Movements in the fair value of the concentrate
debtors are recognised in other revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

i)

Trade and Other Receivables (Cont’d)

The group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit loss associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since the initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument. The
Group always recognises the lifetime expected credit
loss for trade receivables carried at amortised cost.
The expected credit losses on these financial assets
are estimated based on the Group’s historic credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions, and
an assessment of both the current as well as forecast
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other receivables measured at amortised cost,
the Group recognised lifetime expected credit losses
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If on the other hand
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to expected credit
losses within the next 12 months.

The Group considers an event of default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
or external sources indicate that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group. A financial
asset is credit impaired when there is evidence that
the counterparty is in significant financial difficulty
or a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event has occurred. The Group writes off a financial
asset when there is information indicating the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Inventories

Finished goods, gold concentrate, gold in circuit
and stockpiles of unprocessed ore have been valued
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure.

Costs are assigned to stockpiles and gold in circuit
inventories based on weighted average cost. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the cost to sell. Consumables have
been valued at cost less an appropriate provision for
obsolescence. Cost is determined on a first-in-first-out
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Deferred Waste

As part of open-pit mining operations, the Group
incurs stripping (waste removal) costs during the
development and production phase of its operations.

When development stripping costs are incurred
expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of
constructing the mine and subsequently amortised
over its useful life using a unit of production
(“UOP”) method. The capitalisation of development
stripping costs ceases when the mine/component
is commissioned and ready for use as intended by
management.

Stripping costs incurred in the production phase
create two benefits:

e the production of inventory; or
e improved access to future ore.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of
inventories produced in the period, production
stripping costs are accounted for as part of the
cost of producing those inventories. Where
production stripping costs are incurred, and the
benefit is improved access to future ore, the costs
are recognised as a stripping activity asset in mine
properties.

If the costs of the inventories produced and the
stripping asset are not separately identifiable, an
allocation is undertaken based on the waste to ore
stripping ratio (for the ore component concerned).
If mining of waste in a period occurs more than the
expected stripping ratio, the excess is recognised as
part of the stripping asset. Where mining occurs at or
below the expected life of component stripping ratio
in a period, the entire production stripping cost is
allocated to the cost of the ore inventories produced.

Amortisation is provided using a UOP method over
the life of the identified component of orebody.
The UOP method results in an amortisation charge
proportional to the depletion of the economically
recoverable mineral resources (comprising proven
and probable reserves) component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Mine Properties: areas in production

Areas in production represent the accumulation of all
acquired exploration, evaluation and development
expenditure incurred by or on behalf of the Group
in relation to an area of interest in which mines
are being prepared for production or the economic
mining of a mineral reserve has commenced.

When further development expenditure, including
waste development, is incurred in respect of a mine
property after the commencement of production,
such expenditure is carried forward to the extent that
a future economic benefit is established, otherwise
such expenditure is classified as part of the cost of
production. Amortisation of costs is provided using a
UOP method (with separate calculations being made
for each mineral resource).

The UOP method results in an amortisation charge
proportional to the depletion of the economically
recoverable mineral reserves.

The costs are carried forward to the extent that
these costs are expected to be recouped through the
successful exploitation of the Group’s mining leases.
The net carrying value of each mine property is
reviewed regularly and, to the extent that it's carrying
value exceeds its recoverable amount, the excess is
fully provided against in the financial year in which it
is determined.

Plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried
at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and impairment.

The cost of an item of plant and equipment comprises:

e lts purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates;

e Any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management; and

e The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF 1. ARERRIESHHEIME(E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on
all items of property, plant and equipment other
than mining plant and equipment and land. The
depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable
assets are:

Other plant and equipment 5-50%
Buildings 4-33%

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and
amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year end.

Impairment

The carrying values of mine properties, plant and
equipment are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable. Refer to note 1(0).

Disposal
An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no further
future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Mineral Exploration and Evaluation Costs
Exploration expenditure is expensed to the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss as and when
it is incurred and included as part of cash flows from
operating activities in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows. Exploration costs are only capitalised to
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position if
they result from an acquisition.

Evaluation expenditure is capitalised to the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Evaluation is deemed to be activities undertaken
from the beginning of the definitive feasibility study
conducted to assess the technical and commercial
viability of extracting a mineral resource before
moving into the development phase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

m)

n)

Mineral Exploration and Evaluation Costs (Cont'd)
The criteria for carrying forward costs are:

®  Such costs are expected to be recouped through
successful development and exploitation of the
area of interest, or alternatively by its sale; or

e Exploration and/or evaluation activities in the
area of interest have not yet reached a state
which permits a reasonable assessment of
the existence or otherwise of economically
recoverable reserves and active and significant
operations in or in relation to the area are
continuing.

Costs carried forward in respect of an area of interest
which is abandoned are written off in the year in
which the abandonment decision is made.

Farm Out arrangements

In respect of Farm Outs, the Company does not record
any expenditure made by the Farmee on its account.
Where there is capitalised exploration expenditure
it also does not recognise any gain or loss on its
exploration and evaluation Farm Out arrangements
but redesignates any costs previously capitalised in
relation to the whole interest as relating to the partial
interest retained. Cash received from the Farmee is
treated as a reimbursement of expenditure incurred
(where expenditure is capitalised) or gains on disposal
if there is no capitalised expenditure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
normally of three months or less, and bank overdrafts
excluding any restricted cash. Restricted cash is not
available for use by the Company and is therefore not
considered highly liquid (i.e. rehabilitation bonds).

For the purposes of the Consolidated Statement of
Cashflows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and cash equivalents as defined above net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
included within interest-bearing loans and borrowings
in current liabilities on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial
assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable asset group that generates cash flows
that are largely independent from other assets and
groups. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units
and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised
cost due to their short-term nature and they are not
discounted. They represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the
Group becomes obliged to make future payments in
respect of the purchase of these goods and services.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition.

Payables to related parties are carried at the principal
amount. Interest, when charged by the lender, is
recognised as an expense on an accrual basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

9

r)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) because of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all the provision
to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision
is presented in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost.

Interest Bearing Liabilities

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised
at fair value net of issue costs associated with the
borrowing.

After initial recognition, interest bearing liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost
is calculated considering any issue costs, and any
discount or premium on settlement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the Consolidated
Statements of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, as well as through the amortisation
process.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Employee Benefits

Wages, salaries and other short-term benefits

The liability for wages, salaries and other short-term
benefits is recognised at the present value of expected
future payments.

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in
the provision for employee benefits and measured as
the present value of expected future payments to be
made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures and periods of service. Expected
future payments are discounted using market yields at
the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds or
national government bonds as appropriate with terms
to maturity and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Superannuation

Contributions made by the Group to employee
superannuation funds, defined contribution plans,
are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss in the period employees’ services are provided.

Restoration and Rehabilitation Costs

The Group records the present value of the estimated
cost of legal and constructive obligations to restore
operating locations in the period in which the
obligation is incurred. The nature of restoration
activities includes dismantling and removing
structures, rehabilitating mines, dismantling operating
facilities, closure of plant and waste sites and
restoration, reclamation and revegetation of affected
areas.

An obligation arises when the asset is installed
at the production location. When the liability is
initially recorded, the estimated cost is capitalised by
increasing the carrying amount of the related mining
assets. Over time, the liability is increased for the
change in the present value based on the discount
rates that reflect the current market assessments
and the risks specific to the liability. Additional
disturbances or changes in rehabilitation costs
will be recognised as additions or changes to the
corresponding asset and rehabilitation liability when
incurred.

The unwinding of the effect of discounting on
the provision is recorded as a finance cost in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. The carrying
amount capitalised is depreciated over the life of the
related asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

u)

%]

w)

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is calculated as net
profit attributable to members of the parent divided
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares,
adjusted for any bonus element.

Diluted EPS is calculated as net profit attributable to
members of the parent, adjusted for:

e Costs of servicing equity (other than dividends);

e The after-tax effect of dividends and interest
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares
that have been recognised as expenses; and

e Other non-discretionary changes in revenues
or expenses during the period that would result
from the dilution of potential ordinary shares.

The result is then divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential
ordinary shares adjusted for any bonus element.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. There were no borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation during the year (2020: no borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation).

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues
and expenses relating to transactions with other
components of the same entity). Operating segments
results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
chief operating decision makers and are used to
make decisions about the allocation of resources
and to assess performance using discrete financial
information. This includes start-up operations which
are yet to earn revenues. Management will also
consider other factors in determining operating
segments such as the existence of a line manager and
the level of segment information presented to the
Board of Directors.

Operating segments have been identified based on the
information provided to the chief operating decision
makers, being the executive management team.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF 1. ARERRIESHHEIME(E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

w) Segment Reporting (Cont'd) w) DERIRE (1E)

The Company aggregates two or more operating
segments when they have similar economic
characteristics, and the segments are similar in each
of the following respects:

e geographical location;

e national regulatory environment;

e nature of the products and services; and
e nature of the production processes.

Operating segments that do not meet the quantitative
criteria as prescribed by IFRS 8 Operating Segments
are reported separately. An operating segment that
does not meet the quantitative criteria is still reported
separately where information about the segment
would be useful to users of the financial statements.

Information about other business activities and
operating segments that are below the quantitative
criteria are combined and disclosed in a separate
category for “all other segments”.

Contributed Equity
Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair
value of the consideration received by the Company.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

y)

Fair Value

The Group measures financial instruments, such as
derivatives at fair value at each reporting date. Fair
values of financial instruments measured at amortised
cost are disclosed in note 24.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability;
or

e in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, if market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF 1. ARERRIESHHEIME(E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

y) Fair Value (Cont'd) y) ATEGE)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Significant Accounting Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
Judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Concentrate sales

With respect to concentrate sales, a receivable is
recognised when the concentrate is delivered to the
customer’s facility as this is the point in time that
control is transferred, and the Group’s performance
obligations have been met in accordance with the
sales agreements. Adjustments are made to the
receivables for variations in assay and weight between
the time of dispatch of the concentrate and time of
final settlement to reflect the change in fair value of
the receivables.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal
and termination options

The Group determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it
is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is
reasonably certain not to be exercised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

7)

Significant Accounting Judgements (Cont’d)
Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal
and termination options (Cont’d)

The Group has lease contracts that include extension
and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably
certain whether or not to exercise the option to
renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for
it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects
its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to
renew or to terminate (e.g. construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation
to the leased asset).

The Group did not include the renewal period as part
of the lease term of property. The periods covered by
termination options are included as part of the lease
term only when they are reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

Production start date

The Group assesses the stage of each mine under
development/construction to determine when a mine
transitions into the production phase, this being when
the mine is substantially complete and ready for its
intended use.

The criteria used to assess the start date are
determined based on the unique nature of each
mine development/construction project, such as the
complexity of the project and its location. Some of
the criteria used to identify the production start date
include, but are not limited to:

e level of capital expenditure incurred compared
with the original construction cost estimate;

e completion of a reasonable period of testing of
the mine plant and equipment;

e ability to produce metal in saleable form (within
specifications); and

e ability to sustain ongoing production of metal.
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF 1. ARERRIESHHEIME(E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Significant Accounting Judgements (Cont’d)
Production start date (Cont’d)

When a mine development project moves into the
production phase, the capitalisation of certain mine
development costs ceases and costs are either regarded
as forming part of the cost of inventory or expensed,
except for costs that qualify for capitalisation relating
to mining asset additions or improvements. It is also at
this point that depreciation/amortisation commences.

Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities
are often determined based on estimates and
assumptions of future events. The key estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain
assets and liabilities within the next reporting period
are:

Determination of mineral resources and ore reserves
The determination of reserves impacts the
accounting for asset carrying values, depreciation
and amortisation rates, deferred stripping costs and
provisions for decommissioning and restoration. The
ore reserves, mineral resources or mineralisation are
reported in accordance with the Aus.IMM “Australian
Code for reporting of Identified Mineral Resources
and Ore Reserves” (“the Code”).

The information has been prepared by or under
supervision of competent persons as identified by the
Code. There are numerous uncertainties inherent in
estimating mineral resources and ore reserves and
assumptions that are valid at the time of estimation
may change significantly when new information
becomes available. Changes in the forecast prices
of commodities, exchange rates, production costs or
recovery rates may change the economic status of
reserves and may, ultimately, result in the reserves
being restated. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had an increase in its Resources and Reserves.
Changes in reported Reserves and Resources estimates
can impact the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment through depreciation, provisions for mine
rehabilitation, restoration and dismantling obligations,
the recognition of deferred tax assets, as well as the
amount of depreciation and amortisation charged to
the statement of comprehensive income. However,
quantification of the future impact is not considered
practicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

aa)

Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
(Cont’d)

Mine rehabilitation provisions

The Group assesses its mine rehabilitation provision
half-yearly in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 1(t). Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for mine rehabilitation as
there are many transactions and other factors that will
affect the ultimate liability payable to rehabilitate the
mine site.

The ultimate rehabilitation costs are uncertain,
and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors, including estimates of the extent and costs
of rehabilitation activities, technological changes,
regulatory changes, cost increases as compared to the
inflation rates and changes in discount rates. These
uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure
differing from the amounts currently provided.
Therefore, significant estimates and assumptions
are made in determining the provision for mine
rehabilitation. As a result, there could be significant
adjustments to the provisions established which
would affect future financial result. The provision at
reporting date represents the Group’s best estimate
of the present value of the future rehabilitation costs
required. The restoration activities in relation to
Svartliden and Orivesi are expected to commence
once all necessary approvals have been obtained.

Contingent liabilities

The Group assesses all open legal matters at each
reporting date to determine whether a provision
should be recognised or contingent liability disclosed.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that
arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only on the occurrence or non-occurrence
of uncertain future events outside the Groups control,
or present obligations that arise from past events but
are not recognised because:

(@) it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
or

(b) the amount cannot be measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are
disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow is
remote. The Group has disclosed the contingent
liabilities identified at year end in note 22.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

aa) Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

(Cont’d)

Impairment of non-financial assets

In accordance with accounting policy note 1(0)
the Consolidated Entity, in determining whether
the recoverable amount of its cash-generating units
is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or
value-in-use against which asset impairment is to be
considered, undertakes future cash flow calculations
which are based on a number of critical estimates
and assumptions including, for its mine properties,
forward estimates of:

e mine life, including quantities of mineral reserves
and resources for which there is a high degree
of confidence of economic extraction with given
technology;

e production levels and demand;
*  metal price;

e inflation;

e cash costs of production;

e discount rates applicable to the cash-generating
unit; and

e future legal changes and/or environmental
permits.

Impairment is recognised when the carrying amount
of the cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount for each cash-
generating unit has been determined using the fair
value less cost of disposal approach, classified as
level 3 on the fair value hierarchy. Any variation in
the assumptions used to determine fair value less cost
of disposal would result in a change to the assessed
recoverable value. If the variation in assumption had
a negative impact on recoverable value, it could
indicate a requirement for impairment of non-current
assets.

Refer to note 8 for further discussion of the current
year impairment trigger assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

aa)

Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
(Cont’d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Australia,
Sweden, and Finland. The Group’s accounting policy
for taxation stated in note 1(f) requires management’s
judgement as to the types of arrangements considered
to be a tax on income in contrast to an operating
cost. Judgement is also required in assessing whether
deferred tax assets and certain deferred tax liabilities
are recognised on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position.

Deferred tax assets, including those arising from un-
recouped tax losses, capital losses and temporary
differences, are recognised only where it is considered
more likely than not that they will be recovered,
which is dependent on the generation of sufficient
future taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities arising
from temporary differences in investments, caused
principally by retained earnings held in foreign tax
jurisdictions, are recognised unless the repatriation
of retained earnings can be controlled and are not
expected to occur in the foreseeable future.

Assumptions about the generation of future taxable
profits and repatriation of retained earnings depend
on management’s estimates of future cash flows.
These depend on estimates of future production
and sales volumes, operating costs, restoration
costs, capital expenditure, dividends, and other
capital management transactions. Judgements are
also required about the application of income tax
legislation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

bb) Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued but

Not Yet Effective

The following accounting standards and
interpretations have been issued or amended but
are not yet effective. These standards have not been
adopted by the Group for the period ended 31
December 2021 and are outlined below:

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use — Amendments to IAS 16 (effective 1
January 2022)

The amendment prohibits entities from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds of the sale of items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead,
an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such
items, and the costs of producing those items, in profit
or loss. The Group has considered the impact on its
Consolidated Financial Statements and assessed that
the new standard will have no effect.

Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract —
Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets (effective 1 January
2022)

In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS
37 to specify which costs an entity needs to include
when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-
making. The amendments apply a ‘directly related
cost approach’. The costs that relate directly to a
contract to provide goods or services include both
incremental costs (e.g., the costs of direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of costs directly related
to contract activities (e.g., depreciation of equipment
used to fulfil the contract as well as costs of contract
management and supervision). The Group has
considered the impact on its Consolidated Financial
Statements and assessed that the new standard will
have no effect.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

bb) Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued but

Not Yet Effective (Cont’d)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the ‘10 per
cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities —
(effective 1 January 2022)

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. There is no similar
amendment proposed for IAS 39.

An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendment. The Group has
considered the impact on its Consolidated Financial
Statements and assessed that the new standard will
have no effect.

AIP IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards — Subsidiary as a first-
time adopter (effective 1 January 2022)

The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects
to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by the parent, based on the parent’s
date of transition to IFRS. This amendment is also
applied to an associate or joint venture that elects
to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1. The Group has
considered the impact on its Consolidated Financial
Statements and assessed that the new standard will
have no effect.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2021412 431 H L4

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF 1. ARERRIESHHEIME(E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

bb) BERMEMRERNEERRZRE

bb) Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued but

Not Yet Effective (Cont’d)
Reference to the Conceptual Framework —
Amendments to IFRS 3 (effective 1 January 2022)

The amendments are intended to replace a reference
to a previous version of the IASB’s Conceptual
Framework the 1989 Framework) with a reference
to the current version issued in March 2018 (the
Conceptual Framework) without significantly changing
its requirements. The amendments add an exception
to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue
of potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred
separately. The exception requires entities to apply
the criteria in IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead
of the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether
a present obligation exists at the acquisition date. The
Group has considered the impact on its Consolidated
Financial Statements and assessed that the new
standard will have no effect.

AIP IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in Fair Value
Measurements (effective 1 January 2022)

The amendment removes the requirement in
paragraph 22 of IAS 41 that entities exclude cash
flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of
assets within the scope of IAS 41. This standard is not
applicable to the Company.

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January
2023)

This standard replaces IFRS 4, which currently permits
a wide variety of practices in accounting for insurance
contracts. IFRS 17 will fundamentally change the
accounting by all entities that issue insurance
contracts and investment contracts with discretionary
participation features. This standard is not applicable
to the Company as it is not an insurance company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

bb)

Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued but
Not Yet Effective (Cont’d)

IAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-
Current (effective 1 January 2023)

On 23 January 2020, the IASB issued amendments
to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements (the amendments) to specify the
requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The Group has considered the impact
on its Consolidated Financial Statements and assessed
that the new standard will have no effect.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact
on the entity in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.

Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to
IAS 8 (effective 1 January 2023)

The amendments clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and change in
accounting policies and the correction of errors.
Also, they clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amended standard clarifies that the
effects on an accounting estimate of a change in
an input or a change in a measurement technique
are changes in accounting estimates if they do not
result from the correction of prior period errors. The
previous definition of a change in accounting estimate
specified that changes in accounting estimates may
result from new information or new developments.
Therefore, such changes are not corrections of errors.
This aspect of the definition was retained by the
Board.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction — Amendments to IAS 12
(effective 1 January 2023)

The amendments clarify that where payments that
settle a liability are deductible for tax purposes, it
is a matter of judgement (having considered the
applicable tax law) whether such deductions are
attributable for tax purposes to the liability recognised
in the financial statements (and interest expense) or
to the related asset component (and interest expense).
This judgement is important in determining whether
any temporary differences exist on initial recognition
of the asset and liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 424 BA =M=k (4) 181

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2021412 431 H L4

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF 1. ARERRIESHHEIME(E)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

bb) Accounting Standards and Interpretations Issued but

bb) EEMEERERNETEARZE

Not Yet Effective (Cont’d)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments
to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 (effective 1
January 2023)

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS
1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements, in which it provides guidance and
examples to help entities apply materiality judgements
to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments aim to help entities provide
accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by:

e replacing the requirement for entities to
disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies
with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’
accounting policies; and

e adding guidance on how entities apply the
concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

In assessing the materiality of accounting policy
information, entities need to consider both the size of
the transactions, other events or conditions and the
nature of them.

Changes in Accounting Policies on Adoption of
New and Amended Accounting Standards and
Interpretations

The Group has adopted all new and amended
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board that are
relevant to the Group and effective as at 1 January
2021.

The adoptions of these new and amended Accounting
Standards and Interpretations did not impact the
accounting policies or the financial statements of the
Group.
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182 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 454 B 5 it b (4)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 WE20214E12 431 H L4
2. OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND EXPENSES 2. Hftlas - WARBX
2021 2020
20216 20204
AU$’000 AU$’000
FHET T
(@) Cost of sales (@) SHERAK
Cost of production net of A AR (OB A B2 E))
inventory movements 34,420 42,696
Depreciation of mine properties, WS ~ W Bkt 85
plant, and equipment 5,301 7,882
Rehabilitation costs &R R AR 2,032 1,021
41,753 51,599
Cost of production net of AL FERAR (F115 A7 5 E))
inventory movements
Mining PRI 22,252 19,706
Processing B 15,242 21,240
Other production activities oAt A V5 ) 1,007 1,243
Gold inventory movements BT B E) (4,081) 507
Cost of production net of A A
inventory movements (FNBRAF B 52 H)) 34,420 42,696
(b) Other revenue (b) HitbUirz
Finance revenue and interest & Wi zs M AE 3 6
Rent and sundry revenue HH 45 S METE A 6 6
9 12
(c) Other income () HfWA
Sale of property, plant, YIRS BBt
and equipment 374 2
Service income MRS W A 313 127
Other HAth 118 185
805 314
DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Aok B A 0 e P ()

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE

2. OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND EXPENSES 2.

(CONT’D)

(d) Operating expenses

Management and administration

expenses

Exploration and evaluation assets

written off

Depreciation of non-mine site

assets

(e) Finance costs
Interest
Other

(f) Total employee benefits including

Directors’ remuneration
Wages and salaries
Defined contribution

superannuation expense

Other employee benefits

Wages and salaries included in:

Cost of sales

Management and administration

expenses

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

(d)

(e)

®

REERX
B R AT 52

T 0 L) 455 b o A S

BARERAS
AR
HoAt

EEREANAE
(BEEEFHMH)

T MHr

FE PR RSB S

oAt B AR A

HipWss ~ WARAX(E)

FEA LU & TR T8 B -

B A
B R AT BH 52

2021 2020
20215 20204E
AU$’000 AU$’000
FE®T TFWoC
4,356 4,269
561 2,381

220 175
5,137 6,825

15 116

14 17

29 133

6,907 7,530
1,500 1,002

- 734

8,407 9,266
6,071 7,138
2,336 2,128
8,407 9,266
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

INCOME TAX

Income Tax Expense

The major components of income
tax expense are:

Current income tax

Current income tax expense

Adjustments in respect of current
income tax of previous year

Deferred income tax

Income tax benefit arising from
previously unrecognised tax loss

Relating to origination and reversal
of temporary differences

Income tax expense reported in
the statement of
comprehensive income

(b) Amounts charged or credited

directly to equity

Deferred income tax related to
items charged/(credited)
directly to equity

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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3. Fis®t
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2020
20204F
AU$’000
TFT

534

(218)

316
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)  Z=4 BARS IR M =5 (4) 185
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE20214E12 31 H IR
3. INCOME TAX (CONT’D) Fris®i (4&)

() Numerical reconciliation between aggregate tax
expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income and tax expense calculated per the statutory
income tax rate

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product
of accounting profit before income tax multiplied by
the Group’s applicable income tax rate is as follows:

()  TAA AT A 2l 8 30 T D) S A AR
ik P A BB T O B B SR
B BR

0 T B S BB Py A5 i € s A S A
45 785 1 P A9 BB R 2 SR BR (1) AR 4
T

2021 2020

20216 20204

AU$’000 AU$’000

FRr T

Accounting profit before income tax B BT A58 Fir & 51k Al 292 10,509

At the Group's statutory income tax  F& A48 B I 1) 125 T 15 i
rate of 30% in Australia (2020: 30%)  Bi#30% (20204 : 30%) 88 3,153
Adjustments in respect of current HINE T AR L S0 P A R

income tax in foreign jurisdiction 1,053 -
Effect of different rates of 2N E R NGk TR

tax on overseas income 42) (1,698)
Other HoAth - (843)
Previously unrecognised tax B TR AR AR R

losses utilised/recognised BiIE - (1,009)

Tax losses and other temporary T R 5 T s 48 e S At 27 1R
differences not recognised as ZE R (R W] e e A A 45
benefit not probable 2,590 713

Aggregate income tax expense

A5 B S A 3,689 316

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.

INCOME TAX (CONT’D)

(d) Recognised deferred tax assets

and liabilities

Consolidated deferred income tax

at reporting date relates
to the following:
Deferred tax assets
(excluding tax losses)
Leave entitlements
Rehabilitation provision
Share issue and listing costs
Mine properties, property,
plant, and equipment
Exploration costs
Accruals
Temporary differences not
recognised
Set off deferred tax liabilities
pursuant to set off provisions

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated deduction

Mine properties, property,
plant and equipment

Set off deferred tax liabilities
pursuant to set off provisions

Deferred income tax liabilities

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

[

%

AR A A

R BB AR R (48
HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
3. FiS®i(&)

2020
20204
AU$'000
FoT

92
2,165
728

733

188

33
(3,078)

(861)

(140)

140

2021
20214
AU$’000
FET
(d BEIREEHREEE
&=L
R H LR 5145 TH
HEAM 48 SR TSR
AL B I B
(Bl IE AR FRA)
PRABREF 86
TR A 2,621
Ry 8547 Ko b T AR 270
3L/ EY E
NG 701
B R A -
e H 36
SRR 1) BT 7 25 BH
(3,509)
R BF A0 2 K 1 0
i E B K (205)
AEFE T 1S B A -
B I B
Sz
37 LY E Y E
W7 S A (205)
TR I SR I 8
IR AER T B & 205
PEFT Ir 1S B A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
3. INCOME TAX (CONT’D)

(e) Tax Losses

The Group has tax losses of approximately AU$18.2
million in Australia (2020: AU$16.9 million) and
approximately AU$26.0 million in Sweden (2020:
AU$26.8 million) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
jurisdictions in which the losses arose. The Australian
tax consolidated group has available capital losses
amounting to AU$2.6 million (2020: AU$2.6 million).
The Group utilised its tax losses in Finland during the
year (2020: the Group utilised its tax losses in Finland

during the year).

The benefits of the tax losses will only be obtained by
the companies in the Consolidated Entity if:

e they continue to comply with the provisions
of the Income Tax Legislation relating to the
deduction of losses of prior periods;

e they earn sufficient assessable income to enable
the benefits of the deductions to be realised; and

e there are no changes in Income Tax Legislation
adversely affecting the Company’s ability to

realise the benefits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they may not be used to
offset taxable profits elsewhere in the Group, they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time, and there are no other tax planning
opportunities or other evidence of recoverability in

the near future.

Tax consolidation

Effective 1 July 2003, for the purpose of income
taxation, Dragon Mining Limited and its 100%
Australian owned subsidiaries formed a Tax
Consolidation Group (“Tax Group”). Members of
the Tax Group have entered into a tax sharing and
funding arrangement whereby each entity in the Tax
Group has agreed to pay a tax equivalent amount
to or from the head entity, based on the current
tax liability or current tax asset of the entity. Such
amounts are reflected in amounts receivable from
or payable to other entities in the Tax Group. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, there are no tax
consolidation adjustments (2020: nil). The nature of
the tax funding arrangement for the Tax Group is such
that no tax consolidation adjustments (contributions
by or distributions to equity participants) would be
expected to arise. The head entity of the Tax Group
is Dragon Mining Limited. In addition, the agreement
provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities
between the entities should the head entity default
on its tax payment obligations. At balance date, the

possibility of default is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen
For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand
Restricted use cash

(@) Reconciliation of net profit after tax to n
from operations

Net profit after tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation
Exploration write-off

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in receivables
Decrease/(increase) in other assets
Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade creditors

Increase in provisions

Net operating cash flows

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities

Opening balance - 1 January
Cash flow:

Repayment of borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities

Non-cash changes:

Additions to lease liabilities

Foreign exchange adjustments on
borrowings and lease liabilities

Balance at period end

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
AR A R A A

ts (Cont'd)  ZFA B4R HGRFIHE ()
HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
4. ReRkBREEEY

2021 2020
20215 20204F

AU$’000 AU$’000

FET T

AT X FIEBL 4 7,737 14,352
FR il F 3 B 42 6,633 -
14,370 14,352

et cash flows

@ BBRFEFNEKLEELNFRSR

EYER
FRBUAR 156 A 292 10,193
FELL N IE H 1EH i
Hres R kg 5,521 8,057
F S 561 2,381
ANBE (W 35) /st TR 48 (506) 658
HHEGER A EI)E)
JRE WAL T R T (1,053) (1,030)
Hoh g A L () 616 (48)
TEBY 3,565 909
JEAT B 5 B 3 b (1,063) (1,181)
BN 763 835
RUBBLE R F 8,696 20,774
b)) EREHELNEEHE
2021 2020
20215 20204
AU$’000 AU$’000
FE®T TFoC
mgker—1H1H 3,364 6,600
IE_T/E\/)/L:% ’
MR (3,000) (3,000)
R E A A (1,484) (101)
E3E0 1/
WEHEARE 3,150 461
8 R SR i 1 B R
(17) (596)
HAR &5 B 2,013 3,364
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)  Z=4 BARS IR M =5 (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
5. EFRHEMEKRE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FRT T T

Trade receivables — fair value through B 57 EMCGR I —
profit or loss (i) A 5 R A EFHEG) - 4,153
Trade receivables — amortised cost (ii) & 5 ME WSk TE — 8 AR (i) 3,150 866
Other receivables (iii) oAb JRE S (i) 2,075 1,259
5,225 6,278
(i) Trade receivables that relate to concentrate sales that () BEAS T S A A 0 S R 5 R R 1Y)

are subject to quotation period pricing are recognised
at fair value through profit or loss. Concentrate sales
are subject to the provisional pricing arrangements
disclosed in note 1(i). The Group issues a provisional
invoice at the end of the month following the month
of delivery which is payable within fifteen days. A
final invoice is issued by the Group within three days

B 5 BE WK > 4% 3 1 (7R 18 4 Tl
i o K B B 5 JH 32 B 1) T B R 1Y
B RrE B 2 PE BT IR © ARSE B it e fif
2% AR I H T B S o R
HETA -0 H A SRS o SR A iU
MR =N RS R > —
S AR AR T B 7 A RO S SRR T

of receiving final assays, typically two months post- HAAT
delivery, which is payable by the purchaser within
five days of invoice receipt.
(i) Includes trade receivables for gold sold on market and (i) AR TS E R W H RS

settled within two days. The probability of default is
considered to be insignificant. All amounts have been

collected subsequent to year end.

BY o

B 5 5 ISR o 78 %) ] REPERAR
AR o PrA s IHC R 4R EREIR 1

(iii) Other receivables include bank guarantees held on (i) At R i 3 TR B0 45 i o LN F ) 2E

deposit with National Australia Bank for the lease
of the corporate premises. These deposits are rolled
over every three months in accordance with the
lease terms. Due to the short-term nature and credit
rating of the counterparty, the probability of default is

insignificant.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk and interest rate risk

are disclosed in note 24(d) and 24(e).

Ageing Analysis

An aged analysis of the trade debtors as at the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

Amounts not yet due
Within 1 month

1 to 2 months

2 to 3 months

Over 3 months

Trade receivables

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A
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190 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 454 BABSHR b5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 WE20214E12 431 H L4
6. INVENTORIES 6. FE
2021 2020
20214 20204
AU$’000 AU$’000
TR TH#IT
Ore and concentrate stockpiles — at cost BT SO TR S A7 — 4% A 11,720 7,261
Gold in circuit valued — at cost Tt 28 Y B — AR 7,271 8,003
Raw materials and stores — at cost TR R R B — F A 688 850
19,679 16,114
7. OTHER ASSETS 7. HtEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
AU$’000 AU$’000
TR THT
Current B
Prepayments FATFIE 825 209
Non-current FRE
Environmental and other bonds at T AR B AR i Y BROR L
amortised cost HAb &5 5,287 5,544
The environmental bonds relate to cash that has been T i o5 B 0 KR A7 07 Bt B I 25 T I R A
deposited with Swedish and Finnish government RS A o ELLEEBEFEE -
authorities. The bonds are held in an interest-bearing P15 R TE H 52 I AR AT B BT A s %
account and can only be drawn down when rehabilitation RERE 7 BT R I o 454 B 1l T B o 5 2 L iy
programs have been completed and authorised by the T ) 2R S5 7 B 2 4(d) B2 2 4 (e) B % o

relevant government authority. The Consolidated Entity’s
exposure to credit risk and interest rate risk is disclosed in
note 24(d) and 24(e).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land

Gross carrying amount — at cost

Buildings

Gross carrying amount — at cost
Less accumulated depreciation and

impairment

Net carrying amount

Property, plant, and equipment
Gross carrying amount — at cost
Less accumulated depreciation and

impairment

Net carrying amount

Mine properties

Gross carrying amount — at cost
Less accumulated amortisation and

impairment

Net carrying amount

Total property, plant, and equipment
Gross carrying amount — at cost
Less accumulated amortisation and

impairment

Net carrying amount

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

Aok B A 0 e P ()

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
8. M- -BERXE

Tt
T A HE A R T AR E

BF

T A FHE A MR T AR E
BAFHTE KBiE

SR A ¥

¥~ BERRE
FE A (L YD R T A (L
BAFHTE LBE

SR A ¥

i 2 2IES
8 FRAS FHEL Y B T A8 (B

HRTHI FHE

M - BERRERE
2 FRAS R HEL % R T A8 (L

AR TH (L

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$'000
FET T
1,338 1,377
2,669 2,580
(2,295) (2,185)
374 395
38,928 36,083
(34,718) (33,448)
4,210 2,635
146,444 136,247
(106,120) (102,120)
40,324 34,127
189,379 176,287
(143,133) (137,753)
46,246 38,534
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

Included within Mine Properties is AU$9.9 million (31
December 2020: AU$8.4 million) relating to Faboliden.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group is required
to review whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired, in accordance with International
Accounting Standards. If any such indication exists, the
Group shall estimate each asset or cash generating unit
(“CGU”) recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined as the higher of a CGU’s value in use (“VIU")
and its fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD”).

In assessing the CGUs, management of the Company has
determined that the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets is the Vammala
CGU. As the Svartliden Plant has an interdependency
on the Vammala CGU, the impairment assessment
of the Vammala CGU includes the Svartliden Plant.
Expenditure relating to the development of Faboliden has
been capitalised as mine development and assessed as
a separate asset to the Vammala CGU. The Group has
determined that there is no active market for intermediate
components.

The Company has reviewed the Vammala CGU and
Faboliden mine properties for indications of impairment
using both external and internal sources of information
which included current performance, changes in exchange
rates, gold price, market capitalisation and environmental
permitting delays. The Company identified impairment
indicators resulting in impairment testing being performed:

Vammala CGU

The Vammala CGU impairment assessment utilises
a life of mine discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model.
The recoverable amount of AU$38.0 million has been
determined using the VIU methodology.

The key assumptions utilised in the impairment modelling
included a gold price of US$1,730/ounce, a USD:SEK
exchange rate of 8.7, a USD:EUR exchange rate of 0.88
and a post-tax real discount rate of 10%.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The calculation of the recoverable value is most sensitive
to the gold price and foreign exchange rates specifically
EUR:USD.

A fall in the gold price to US$1,687/ounce (i.e., =2.5%) in
the Vammala CGU would decrease the recoverable value
by AU$4.7 million and would not result in impairment.

A decrease in the foreign exchange forecast rate of 5% in
the Vammala CGU would decrease the recoverable value
by AU$9.4 million and would not result in impairment.
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HERBEBNHBRE
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BHE2021F12 31 HIEFRE
8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 8. Y% BMERREE)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Faboliden Mine Properties

Faboliden comprises the open cut mining operation, the
underground resources, and exploration assets. The key
assumptions utilised in the impairment modelling have
been provided by an Independent Experts Valuation
conducted in accordance with the requirements set out by
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board
professional standard APES225 Valuation Services.

Faboliden open cut mine operations

The fair value of the open cut mining operation was
determined using a DCF analysis with support from
comparable transactions. The fair value measurement is
categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy utilising
inputs that are not based on observable market data. The
DCF valuation deals with recently estimated Ore Reserves
from 31 December 2020 based on a life of mine plan, up-
to-date operating and capital costs, full mine closure costs,
and other technical parameters.

The key assumptions utilised in the financial model
included a Swedish corporate tax 20.6%, exchange
rates based on the following currencies; USD:EUR
0.82, USD:SEK 8.30 and USD:AUD 0.77, inflation rate
between 2.0% and 2.4%, forecast gold prices ranging from
US$1,423/ounce to US$1,732/ounce and post-tax discount
rate of 8.5%.

The production profile in the financial model has been
adjusted by a one-year extension to account for the
potential delay in commencement of mining due to the
granting of the Environmental Permit. The project is now
forecasted to commence in late 2022. The processing of
ore within the financial model is treated essentially as a
toll-treatment operation to allow a stand-alone valuation.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Sensitivity analyses performed indicated that a 500-basis
point decrease in the gold price per ounce or an increase
in the post-tax discount rate by 100 basis points would
change the valuation by US($3.4) million and US($0.85)
million respectively and did not result in impairment.

Faboliden underground resources

The underground resource at Faboliden is valued using
the comparable transactions methodology using resource
multiples.

Faboliden exploration assets

The value of the exploration assets related to Faboliden
nr 11, are valued using area multiples and geoscientific
approaches.

No impairment has been recognised for the year ended 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)  Z24 BARSER M =8 (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

8.

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 8. Y% BMERREE)

Reconciliations:

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts

of property, plant and equipment at the
beginning and end of the reporting period:

Land
Carrying amount at beginning of period
Net foreign exchange movement

Carrying amount at end of period

Buildings

Carrying amount at beginning of period
Additions

Depreciation

Net foreign exchange movement

Carrying amount at end of period

Property, plant, and equipment
Carrying amount at beginning of period
Additions

Disposal

Reclassification of right-of-use assets
Transfer to other asset classes
Depreciation

Net foreign exchange movement

Carrying amount at end of period

Mine properties

Carrying amount at beginning of period
Additions

Reclassification of evaluation costs
Depreciation

Net foreign exchange movement

Carrying amount at end of period

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

[

"# W A R A& A

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$'000
FET T
HER -
AW A - B
e 5 A T T (B 3B
b
47 11 B T (B 1,377 1,362
1M TEE 538 88l Y RE (39) 15
AR B B T (E 1,338 1,377
BF
9470 114 B T (L 395 519
WNE 87 7
e (110) (133)
471~ R 58 881 1 L 2 2
R 11 B T (B 374 395
¥ BERRE
HAH77 114 B T (L 2,635 2,844
WHE 2,948 1,391
e 1 -
T U R - (64)
i o oA A S A (199) _
e (1,270) (1,586)
1M TEE 538 88l Y RE 95 50
R 11 B T (B 4,210 2,635
3L ES
A7) 1) B T (L 34,127 29,649
WHE 4,445 1,060
A FEAR AN 1) T A4 5,742 11,037
e (4,000) (7,262)
1M TEE 538 B8l U R 10 (357)
R 11 B T (B 40,324 34,127
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 454 B 5 it B o () 195
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2021412 431 H L4
9. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION COSTS 9. BEVERRFFERA
2021 2020
20214 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET THT
Balance at beginning of financial period A BU AT A 55 R 3,989 8,699
Additions NE 4,004 8,713
Exploration write-off EIR A (561) (2,381)
Reclassification to mine properties R Wi ER LB (5,742) (11,037)
Net foreign exchange movement A1 528 ) 1 7 (65) (5)

Total mineral exploration and evaluation T B S AV B S R

expenditure 1,625 3,989
The recoverability of the carrying amount of exploration SR A 174 R T L R 5 AL ] B 1A i A
and evaluation is dependent on the successful R BAEE K P ZEBR B > B0 AT R
development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively T b g ]

through the sale of the respective area of interest.

10. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 10. EAEEE
2021 2020
20216 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET THT
Gross carrying amount — at cost M T AL — P LA 2,435 504
Less accumulated depreciation and R T R
impairment 392) (127)
Net carrying amount W T R 2,043 377
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196 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 454 B 5 it b (4)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 WE20214E12 431 H L4
10. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONT’D) 10. EREEEE)
Reconciliations HiR
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of right-of use asset i 0940 S U A fofE )RR 5T R R T {EL Y
classes at the beginning and end of the reporting period: E)
2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET T#T
Right-of-use assets — property EREEE -
Carrying amount at beginning of period 90 B B T 222 202
Additions WE 93 81
Depreciation e 92) (62)
Net foreign exchange movement 471 2 ) 15 - 1
Carrying amount at end of period JAPR AR (L 223 222

Right-of-use assets — plant and equipment FERAEEE - BEKRE

Carrying amount at beginning of period A B R T (EL 155 118
Additions WNE 1,838 74
Depreciation s (173) (41)
Net foreign exchange movement 471 ME 5 Bl 1 A - 4
Carrying amount at end of period JAPR AR (L 1,820 155
The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest- AAE F I FH S A EE AR 1300 B A
bearing liabilities at note 13. A o
DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables and accruals

Ageing Analysis

Aok B A 0 e P ()

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
11. EGREMERFIE
2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET TFIT
L 5 AT 3 A e RE w2 5,496 6,548
BRER D AT

An aged analysis of the trade creditors and accruals as at
the end of the reporting period, based on invoice date, is as

follows:

Within 1 month
1 to 2 months
2 to 3 months
Over 3 months

Trade payables and accruals

12. PROVISIONS

Current
Employee entitlements
Rehabilitation
Other

Non-current
Employee entitlements
Rehabilitation

Rehabilitation movement
Balance at 1 January

Additions

Net foreign exchange movement

Balance at 31 December

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

TR R > B H IR AT B 5
MR B HE 2 A BRI AT 0 T

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FE®T T¥oC
—fE AN 4,878 6,544
—Z R EH 618 1
W £ =1 H - 3
R =1 A _ _
& 5 AT 3K T e 512 5,496 6,548
12. &5
2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET RV
FRE
& B s 1,769 1,839
1528 1,149 313
HAthy 196 199
3,114 2,351
EFRE
R ERE4R 10 149
1538 22,879 18,876
22,889 19,025
ik
A1 H1THB&EER 19,189 18,992
NE 5,363 26
471 FEE 528 )y 1 A (524) 171
12 A31 H A S5 24,028 19,189
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

12. PROVISIONS (CONT’D)

The provisions for rehabilitation are recorded in relation
to the gold mining operations for the rehabilitation of the
disturbed mining area to a state acceptable to various
Swedish and Finnish authorities. While rehabilitation is
performed progressively where possible, final rehabilitation
of the disturbed mining area is not expected until the
cessation of production. Accordingly, the provisions are
expected to be settled primarily at the end of the mine
life, although some amounts will be settled during the
mine life. Rehabilitation provisions are estimated based on
survey data, external contracted rates and the timing of the
current mining schedule. Provisions are discounted based
on rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to that liability. The
discount rate utilised for Finland in 2021 was 0% (2020:
0%) and in Sweden was 0% (2020: 0%). Additions during
the relevant periods to the rehabilitation provision include
obligations that do not have an associated mining asset
recognised at the end of the reporting date.

On 3 June 2021, the Pirkanmaa Centre for Economic
Development, Transport, and the Environment (“PIR
ELY”) issued a letter to Dragon Mining and the previous
owners of the Orivesi mine, Outokumpu Mining Oy
(“Outokumpu”) advising of their shared responsibility
in the removal of the litter located between the 66m
and 85m underground levels. The Group's provision for
rehabilitation includes an additional AU$2.0 million
associated with the removal of litter stored between the
66m and 85m underground levels. The addition cost
represents 50% of the total cost agreed with Outokumpu.
The bulk material was deposited before the Company
purchased the mine in 2003 and recommenced mining in
2007.

As at the date of this Annual Report, there have been no
changes to the acid forming characteristics of the non-acid
forming waste rock area included in the Group’s Svartliden
Closure Plan. On 18 November 2019, the Company
submitted its appeal to the Environmental Court of Appeal
challenging, amongst other things, the additional security
required by the Land and Environmental Court for an
engineered cover to the entire waste rock area. On 25
February 2022, the Court of Appeal determined further
studies are required to reduce the level of uncertainty in
the investigations before it can consider the EPA request
for additional collateral security. A contingent liability in
relation to the Group’s Svartliden rehabilitation provision
has been disclosed at note 22.

The Group continues to complete progressive rehabilitation
at all its sites. Rehabilitation expected to be undertaken in
the subsequent reporting period has been recognised as a
current liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

13. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

Current
Lease liabilities

Non-current
Loan principal
Lease liabilities

TE
HEAMR

FRE
eies
HEAH

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities
(included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings)

and the movements during the year.

As at 1 January
Additions

Accretion of interest
Payments

As at 31 December

ATH1TH
WNE
Epil)s
D

A12H31H

The Group's right-of-use lease assets are included at note

10.

The Group has an unsecured AU$12.0 million loan facility
with AP Finance Limited (“Loan Facility”). On 1 March
2022, the Company extended the expiry date of its Loan
Facility from 31 December 2022 to 30 June 2023. All
other terms and conditions remain unchanged.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

R BB AR P ST (48
HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
13. stEE&

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$'000
FET T
622 147

- 3,000

1,391 217
1,391 3,217

RS A A R E (AT

B RAEE) K -

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
TR Fioe
364 307
3,150 158

(5) (5)
(1,496) (96)
2,013 364

A T ) fok PR REREL B A R R 1 0B -

75 4E 4 3 3 AP Finance Limited #912.0
R T Y K R G ([ KR
%) o 202243 H1H > AR EIFE K
BEMEIYHBH2022F12 31 HIER =
20234E6 A30H o AT HAh Mk K ek 4
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200 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 454 B 5 it b (4)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 WE20214E12 431 H L4
14. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY 14, B
2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20204 20215 20204
Share capital TN Number of Shares AU$000 AU$'000
RIDEE TR T
Ordinary shares fully paid CAE A 158,280,613 138,840,613 140,454 133,991
Movements in issued capital CETRAEE)

AU$’000 No. of Shares
FET Je 8 H

At 1 January 2021 202141 H1H 133,991 138,840,613
Issue of new shares net of BT > R3S
transaction costs? AR 6,862 20,000,000
Transaction costs for issued share T\ E$47 AT 5 i A
capital® (229) -
Share buy-back and cancellation®™ {7 [l & #1450 (170) (560,000)
Balance at 31 December 2021 A20214E12 A31 H 458k 140,454 158,280,613
(1) As at 31 December 2021, the Company had repurchased 667,000 (1) JR20214E12 A 31 H > AL &) A A4y ] i b i
shares in the share buy-back of which 560,000 shares had been [11667,000 B 115 » FH 560,000 8 I 43175 &
cancelled at that date. The remaining 107,000 repurchased shares FEEH o 8RN 107,000 8008 B 03742022 4F1 H #E
were cancelled in January 2022. 5 o
(2)  On 22 January 2021, the issued share capital was increased by (2)  JA20214E1H22 H > B B 4T B AS il 8 AT
net AU$6,632,371 by the issue of 20,000,000 ordinary shares of 20,000,000 A% 45 B 18 {5.0.33 18 I 114 3% 28 B (410
AU$0.33 each after transaction costs (31 December 2020: nil). [k 3¢ 55 WU A% ) 38 N 13 586,632,371 5T (2020

F12A31H %) -

15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE
No dividend has been paid or declared since the A4 BE B i G A S s IRABE, »
commencement of the year and no dividend has been %?T‘K@%E’JEEE§2021 F£12H31H L4
recommended by the Directors for the year ended 31 FEURAT IR (20204F « 48) -

December 2021 (2020: nil).
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subsidiaries.

Convertible note premium reserve summary

This reserve is used to record the equity component of any
convertible notes on issue. This is a historical reserve and
no convertible notes are currently on issue.

Equity reserve — purchase of non-controlling interest

This reserve is used to record differences between the
consideration paid for acquiring the remaining non-
controlling interest and the carrying value of net assets
attributed to the non-controlling interest. This is a historical
reserve and all subsidiaries are now wholly owned.

Treasury shares reserve

This reserve comprises the cost of the Company’s shares
purchased but not yet issued. As at 31 December 2021,
this reserve comprises 107,000 uncancelled shares in the
Company and represents the amount paid to acquire the
shares. The 107,000 shares held in reserve were canceled
after year end.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

B’ A R 2~ A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 4% & BAB R 2 bh ik (48) 201
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE20214E12 31 H IR
16. RESERVES 16. f#&
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
AU$’000 AU$’000
FRET THIT
Foreign currency translation reserve B ME S Aot 4 (3,863) (3,633)
Convertible note premium reserve ] A SR i M 2,068 2,068
Equity reserve purchase of non-controlling & [ i & JF #2 O ME 25 19
interest E £ fith 5 1,069 1,069
Treasury share reserve JEEA B A7 ft (34) -
(760) (496)
Foreign currency translation reserve summary HNEEFE 05 R EE
This reserve is used to record exchange differences arising 27 TE LR R A S0 ok R 4 v AN a8 2 =) B
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign TSR 2 T s A 1 B 03 25 %8 o

ERRERERERE

% T fit T TS i ek 47 A SN A ] i 4
SEPRARE R TR O) o RZ IR R S A
FI TSI S 38 AT 72 S A A S o

BERHE - BEEERER

% V{7 P 7 s s A ) B O 2 P M 4 e
SEAHAAES Bl B g 7% D 4 P HEE £ F) 57 2 1Y
R T (B 22 [ 9 22 3 o % L fof A4 7y JEE S £k
i > A WA R BRI Ry 2 A -

EER O HE

2 A LA AN S ) I B E R AT RO
BRI REAR © R20214E12 A31H » &b
AL AN A 107,000 0% A 5L 85 B0y > Ak
T EAE By P S AP A % - R T B A Y
107,000 BB A AF R & sk 8 -
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17. FEEEBAERKE

202 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

17. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

TEEEASHE

MRYE b AR~ A s A R B 2R
383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ (c) Bz (O A K2 2 Wl
($9 5 280 = ) i R ) K091 565 2 B0 45
PR LATE B AN

a) Details of Key Management Personnel a)
Directors’ and Executives’ remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)

(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,

is as follows:

Directors

EFE

Mr Arthur G Dew

/RS ot

Mr Wong Tai Chun Mark
FR#FA

Mr Brett R Smith

Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Board (appointed 7
February 2014)

FRATEFHEF G T OR20144E2 77 HEZRAT)

Alternate Director to Mr Arthur G Dew (appointed 19 May 2015)

KRR SE E T (R 2015455 19 B ZAT)

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer (appointed 7 February
2014)

Brett R Smith4E/E WATERACE B PUTH (R20144F2 H 7 HIEZAT)
Ms Lam Lai Non-Executive Director (appointed 18 July 2019)
ME L+ FHATHE S (A20194E7 H 18 HHEZRAT)

Mr Carlisle C Procter
Carlisle C ProctercA4

Mr Pak Wai Keung Martin
SEEL P

Mr Poon Yan Wai
AR

Executives

TTA B

Mr Neale M Edwards
Neale M Edwards5c4:
Mr Daniel K Broughton
Daniel K BroughtonG/E

Independent Non-Executive Director (appointed 19 May 2015)
L AT (7220154E5 719 HEZRAT)

Independent Non-Executive Director (appointed 5 November 2018)
L AT R (722018411 75 HHEZRAT)

Independent Non-Executive Director (appointed 5 November 2018)
L AT R (722018411 75 HHEZRAT)

Chief Geologist (appointed 19 August 1996)
IR (819965F8 H 19 HHEZAT)

Chief Financial Officer (appointed 8 September 2014)
B E (42014479 18 HH#EZAT)

b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel by TEEBEASHM
Key Management Personnel THEHAR

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

AU$ AU$

B’T i

Short-term 5 4 1,253,169 1,216,249
Long-term = 78,481 74,444
Post-employment FEYUNG S 109,173 105,133
Total et 1,440,823 1,395,826

The remuneration of Key Management Personnel FEEMAS (T EEEHAE ) WH
(“KMP”) is determined by the Remuneration T T p T 22 B e AR N AL
Committee having a regard to the position, KEBm - ERE MR BLLL K T 3 B
experience, qualification and performance of the JE o

individuals and market trends.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
AR A R A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

17. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(CONT’D)

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
(Cont’d)

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year
included one Director and four specified employees,
for both 2021 and 2020 years.

Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four highest paid employees who is neither
a Director nor Chief Executive of the Company are as
follows:

R BB AR P ST (48
HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
17. FEEBAEHE(E)

TEEEASHM(E)

LI B I A
FA20214F K 20204F > 4E N Ll B 5
HriE B A — & 2 LU A48 R

E o

A< 24 7 0 AT E 0
B .8 N 3 047 P
T

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

AU$ AU$

BT E5TH

Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind ~ #i4x ~ HRE R EYFIE 964,853 969,162
Performance related bonuses SEGAHBITEAL 54,412 -
Pension scheme contributions RREFEIE K 185,155 173,472
Total et 1,204,420 1,142,634

The number of Non-Director and Non-Chief Executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands, presented in Hong Kong
Dollars, is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000

HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

Total et

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
B A R 2 A

Z % 1,000,000 7T
1,000,001#ICE
1,500,000% 7T
1,500,001#CE
2,000,000 70
2,000,001 0 E
2,500,000 70
2,500,001 40 E
3,000,000 7C
3,000,001 #:C £
3,500,000 7T

A i LT SR (LA T 281 1 JE
#55 N I R ARATBON B S B B
NEEFT

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204F
1 1
3 3
4 4
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204 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) £ & BAS 2 Mk (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 WE20214E12 431 H L4
17. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES 17. S EEEASHKE (&)
(CONT’D)
Directors’ and Executive Officers’ Remuneration EERESRITHABE TN
Post-
Short-Term Other Long-Term Benefits ~ Employment
ik At RHER B4
Long Proportion of
Annual Service Super- Remuneration
Leave Leave annuation Total  Performance
Salary & Fees Bonuses Accrued Accrued Benefits  Emoluments Related
E3orild
RS Ht
In dollars Ui 2il HERHBE T4 et ER BEmE  BzeEA Hmag thl
Directors Ez AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD AUD %
T W LT W e e
Mr Arthur G Dew &l 2021 90,000 - - - 8775 98,775 -
(Non-Executive Chairman) R ER) 2020 90,000 - - - 8,550 98,550 -
Mr Brett R Smith?! Brett R Smith /£ 2021 320,700 200,000 20,406 6,950 50,268 598,324 33%
(Executive Director) (#irES) 2020 320,700 200,000 23,015 11,262 49,467 604,444 33%
Ms Lam Lai WLt 2021 03,203 - - - - 03,263 -
(Non-Executive Director) (7S 2020 71,589 - - - - 71,589 -
Mr Carlisle C Procter Carlisle C Procter i 2021 40,000 - - - 3,900 43,900 -
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (B FATES) 2020 40,000 - - - 3,800 43,800 -
Mr Poon Yan Wai B 2021 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
(Independent Non-Executive Director| (BT 2020 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
Mr Pak Wai Keung Martin Sl T3 201 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (BuFATER 2020 30,000 - - - - 30,000 -
Mr Mark Wong ThSRE 2021 - - - - - - -
(Alternate Director) (BifEZ) 2020 - - - - - - -
Total all specified Directors fiEkEES S 2021 573,963 200,000 20,406 6,950 62,943 864,262 3%
020 56,289 200000 23015 11,262 6817 878383 U
Specified Executives REABAE
Mr Neale M Edwards Neale M Edwards 201 214,698 - 7357 3211 2039 245,662 -
(Chief Geologs!) (HRNEER) 2020 214,698 - 13,333 4,090 20,396 250,517 -
Mr Daniel K Broughton Daniel K Broughtonﬁé 2021 264,508 - 25,190 15,367 25,834 330,899 -
(Chief Financial Oficer) (BREHE) 2020 219,262 - 13277 9467 2,920 264926 -
Total all named Executives FESIRTRASES 2021 479,206 - 30,547 18578 46,230 576,561 -
2020 433,960 - 26,610 13,557 3,316 517,443 -
Total all specified Directors fiEkEES 2021 1,053,169 200,000 52,953 25,528 109173 1,440,823 14%
and Executives RTBABLEH 200 1,016,249 200,000 49,625 24,819 105133 1,395,826 14%

Notes: B 5E -

1) Mr Arthur Dew received certain emoluments from Allied Group 1) ZKHERERSEAR MR AR A A0 T ORI
Limited in relation to his services to the Allied Group Limited, a B2 ) 412 46 I 5 1 AU S LA BR A R
substantial shareholder of the Company. il 4 -

2)  Mr Brett Smith is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company 2)  Brett SmithJE £ 78 £ AR 24 Rl AT BUEEL - XX
and his remuneration disclosed above include those for services JIT 4 5 1) ST I 0 455 A 5 AT B R R AL R A 1
rendered by him as Chief Executive Officer. WSCH Y 357

DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

17.

18.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(CONT’D)

Directors’ and Executive Officers’ Remuneration (Cont’d)
The Executive Director remuneration shown above
is for the provision of services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-
Executive Directors’ remuneration shown above are for
their services as Directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the reporting
period.

No Director proposed for re-election at the annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
compensation.

Changes in Director Emoluments

The service fee of Ms Lam Lai, a Non-Executive Director,
was brought into line with the service fee of fellow Non-
Executive Directors by decreasing approximately 37% with
effect 1 December 2021 as compared with 2020.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

The Auditor of Dragon Mining Limited is Ernst & Young.

R BB AR P ST (48
HE2021F12A31 H IEFE

17.

18.

FTEEEASREE)

ESRERITRAEHM(E)
SO R AT A A AR A W)
72 [ 1) 25 4R PR S BT WA ) S8

B SCHTR AT S SO S IR AT R
P 2 A1 2 A ) R PR T WS 3
o

vty 300 A0 ABR S A ] A ) R R
P B 1) 2 B

SER I FSC TR A R I 3R A 1 S A
SHLAR /3 R RTSEAS AT AR R — 4 R S fit
HEAE (35 7 MG BR AN T DLAS 1R i B
#) o

BEEBeEL

H2021F12 A1 HEE > ERITEFEME L
+ 2 IR # I 20204F 8 D #4937 % £ IR
2 EE A JE AT EE AR AT -

R BB 2 B

E%?‘UE%FE/AE V19 % B 75 22 K B R
X/ F)? °

205

2021 2020
20214 20204F
AU$ AU$
BT ot
Remuneration of Ernst & Young (Australia) 27K € sHHili S5 B sk LA T IR BS
for: R 3BT (TR
— auditing or reviewing accounts — ARt EEF AR H 182,500 158,500
— tax compliance — BB A 63,500 42,500
— other non-audit services — At I A B 58,500 -
304,500 201,000
Remuneration of Ernst & Young (other than  Z&7k & 51 Rl 5455 Br st L RS
Australia) for: R 35T (BN LA S )
— auditing or reviewing accounts — e Ft e IR E 123,500 84,697
123,500 84,697

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
19. EREF

206 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

19. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by
dividing net profit or loss for the period attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period
(adjusted for the effects of dilutive options and dilutive
convertible notes). There have been no post balance sheet
movements impacting the diluted earnings per share.

The following reflects the income and share data used in
the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

B A B A 0 ) DU RS A R A
N S0 PR it 1 e 4 o AL AU A0 2 3%
A7 02 PR IS G T

g PR 2 ) e LA RE N R BB AT
N A i ) 2500 18 4 A R DA 0 2L R AT
8 B P TR S 2 B ol R A 11 B
JUHE % PTG SRR 1) S R L R AR ) wE
B o MRAmEER A B IR BRI I E E A
FERRES) -

PATR S et 8 JBE e A R i AL B Y
W i B 4y B

2021 2020
20216 20204
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREBERF
Profit used in calculation of basic and R FHE R AR f
diluted earnings per share (AU$’000) TR A 3 A (TRT) 292 10,193
Weighted average number of ordinary FA R A A e
shares outstanding during the period used #8271 (19309 A £ 8847
in the calculation of basic and diluted 488 I A TR 48 B
earnings per share 157,654,640 138,840,613
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) 4 i FE A% K 4 22 A1 (43) 0.19 7.34

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 454 B 5 it B o () 207
For the year ended 31 December 2021 2021412 431 H L4
20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 20. BEALRS
a) Subsidiaries a MEAQT
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the LA IR RO TEE A R A 7 &
financial statements of Dragon Mining Limited and e L2 VAT g e S
the subsidiaries listed in the following table:
Name of Entity Incorporation  Class Equity Holding
BERERE o 118 B S 4t B 5 REFEE
2021 2020
20215 20204F
0/0 0/0
Dragon Mining Investments Pty Ltd" Australia Ordinary - 100
L e B
Dragon Mining (Sweden) AB Sweden Ordinary 100 100
Hiy i T B
Viking Gold & Prospecting AB Sweden Ordinary 100 100
Ty S 2 i
Dragon Mining Oy Finland Ordinary 100 100
pa] e i
FEE A TRA T Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100
(Dragon Mining Limited)? s -8
! Deregistered on 9 May 2021 ! 2021485 H 9 H R LI
2 For translation purposes 2 AR

DRAGON MINING LIMITED Annual Report 2021
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208 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)  Z24 BARSER M =8 (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 WE20214E12 431 H L4
20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D) 20. BBEALXRS ()
b) Transactions with related parties b) BHEREATNRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the BRI 2 B 15 S R B S LA by e B
Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company has FEE O - AN FHEA LU TR S
the following transactions with related parties that SIS 2 b P A PR w6 2 b
are also exempted from the continuing connected FKLEE14A.73(6) B 14A.73(8) IR IH
transactions disclosures according to Rule 14A.73(6) T A8 R 1 28 ) B % L 7 1) R T 32
and 14A.73(8) of the Rules Governing the Listing 5y e
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
(i) The Company has effected Directors’ and () ARNFCEEEFELESHAEDN
Officers’ Liability Insurance. FATARBR
(i) In addition to his role as the Company’s Chief (i) BRTEEALFE R UEEZ
Financial Officer, Mr Daniel Broughton provides &b > Daniel Broughton 7t £ 71
Chief Financial Officer services (“CFO Services”) Ir] Y 5 iy T Y 4 B R
and the Company also provides administrative Tanami Gold NL ([ TanamiJ) }
services (“Administrative Services”) to ASX listed TR JIT T A LA 45 Jog B £ 2 Bl
gold explorer, Tanami Gold NL (“Tanami”) and R AlMetals X Limited ([ Metals
ASX listed base metals mining and exploration X 1) SR RS B RIS (1
company Metals X Limited (“Metals X”). The JiE BA 5 B IR 1) - AR 2 F IR
Company also provides the use of certain l] H $2 03t A7 BORR B (1 A7 Bk
space in the Company office premises located B 1) o AL IR Tanami £ {1
in Perth, Australia as its registered office to AR A T YN B S A N R
Tanami. Tanami is an associate of APAC JIv 04 5 T 22 TR A 5 S 1 o
Resources Limited, a substantial shareholder of B o Tanami/Z i K & HA BRA
the Company, and hence a connected person A (A2 A B 2R BB
of Dragon Mining pursuant to Rule 14A.07 A o PR s HRAE B TR R R B
of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Tanami 14565 14A.07 16 7 BE IR 10 B 2
is a Company of which Messrs Dew, Smith N+t o Tanami & A2 A/ JE AT
and Procter, the Company’s Non-Executive LKA~ AT E S Smith %
Chairman, Executive Director, and Independent HE KB 37 IF LA T #E ZF Procter St
Non-Executive Director are also Non-Executive HETMEAEH AT E R — KA
Directors. Metals X is a Company of which ] o Brett Smith 54 75 /4 Metals
Mr Brett Smith is also Executive Director. XHBATHER -
The provision of services to Tanami commenced from 6] Tanami 2 ik 5 F120144F9 H 8 H
8 September 2014. During the year, the Company BIlG o MR o A FEE T R B
charged Tanami AU$100,000 (2020: AU$100,000) B B %5 6] Tanami Y X 100,000 1 5©
for CFO Services of which nil was outstanding at 31 (20204 : 100,000 t) » H it
December 2021 (2020: nil) and AU$39,814 (2020: 20214F12 31 H ARSI B I &
nil) for Administration Services of which nil was (20204F + &) » KowhdT B AR %5 Wit
outstanding at 31 December 2021 (2020: nil). 39,814 7T (20204F : &) » Ho R
20214F12 AT H MR I E A A%
(2020%F + &) -
The provision of services to Metals X commenced 5] Metals X2 £ IR #5 H 20204F 12 H
from 1 December 2020. During the year, the 1HBALG = NFEN > A2 F i E B
Company charged Metals X AU$100,000 (2020: BB S 17 Metals XU EX 100,000
AU$10,000) for CFO Services of which nil was JC (20204F : 10,0008 7T) » H AR
outstanding at 31 December 2021 (2020: $8,333) and 20214E12 431 HER I B A%
AU$31,026 (2020: nil) for Administration Services of (2020%F : 8,333M70) » KikATBUR
which AU nil was outstanding at 31 December 2021 BUER31,026 5T (20204F - 1) >
(2020: nil). JR20214E12 7431 HEIRSUAT 2H 5

FWMIC(20204F : HE) o
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20. BEATRS (E)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

b) Transactions with related parties (Cont’d)
Entity with significant influence over the Group
As at 31 December 2021, the following entities have
significant influence over the Group:

(i) Allied Properties Resources Limited (“APRL”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of APAC Resources
Limited (“APAC”), owns 41,032,727 ordinary
shares of the Company for an interest of 25.92%
(2020: 22.96%)).

(i) Sincere View International Limited owns
31,111,899 (2020: 40,475,899) ordinary shares
of the Company for an interest of 19.59% (2020:
29.15%).

21. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Identification of reportable segments

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the internal reports that are used by the chief operating
decision makers in assessing performance and determining
the allocation of resources.

The Group has identified its operating segments to be
Sweden and Finland, based on geographical location,
different national regulatory environments, and different
end products. Dragon Mining (Sweden) AB, the primary
entity operating in Sweden, produces gold bullion from
the Svartliden Production Centre and processed ore from
test-mining activities at the Faboliden Gold Mine. Dragon
Mining Oy in Finland produces gold concentrate from the
Vammala Production Centre and, processed ore from the
Jokisivu, Kaapelinkulma and Orivesi Gold Mines.

Discrete financial information about each of these
operating segments is reported to the Board and executive
management team (the chief operating decision makers)
on at least a monthly basis.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
EH B AR A A

by EEREEATHNRS(E)
A LE [ Ay T AR 2 B
R20214E12 431 H » LI T B4
SEEAG EORR A

() HEREFRARAR(EKER])
1% 4 ¥ [f J& 2 7] Allied Properties
Resources Limited ([ APRL J) ¥
AN T 41,032,727 W% L 58 % (BD
25.92%HE45 (20204 :22.96%)) °

(ii) Sincere View International
Limited % A 422 ®] 31,111,899
Bt (20204F © 40,475,899 H)
A (B119.59%ME £ (20204F
29.15%)) o

1. ZERER

AR BRI
A B R 5 B A0 - T
2 R S LA R T o
B0 B HE A -

A A AR A B - R [R] B A R
555 T AN [) Y o S ity o I AR A B
b S 8 T S5 TR o AE T BB R 2E B 0 £
% # Dragon Mining (Sweden) AB
Svartliden2E /& w0 A 2 4 S K i Lok B
Faboliden 4 B9 & B% TAE R B A1 - 25 T
f Dragon Mining Oy HIl i Vammala 4= /&
FRL AR A A RS B - I in 2R A Jokisivu
Kaapelinkulma % Orivesi 4 A £ o

AL 2 D4 A ) S KA R
(F R PR ) MEHCAT B 19 (R 587 20 3
{19 S8 32 B B DR
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210 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)  Z24 BARSER M =8 (4)
HE20214F12H31 HIEFE

21. DEER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

21. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Accounting policies and inter-segment transactions

The accounting policies used by the Group in reporting
segments internally are the same as those contained in
note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Segment results include management fees and interest
charged on intercompany loans, both of which are
eliminated in the Group result. They also include foreign
exchange movements on intercompany loans denominated
in AUD, and external finance costs that relate directly
to segment operations. This segment results also include
intercompany sales of concentrate which occur at rates
that reflect market value.

Unallocated corporate costs are non-segmental expenses
such as head office expenses and finance costs that do not
relate directly to segment operations.

Disaggregation of revenue and major customers

External sales in Finland relate to concentrate from the
Vammala Production Centre in Finland. These sales are all
made under an ongoing arrangement to one customer and
the quantity of concentrate sales is agreed by the parties in
advance of delivery.

Inter-segment sales in Finland relate to concentrate on-sold
to the Svartliden Processing Centre for further processing.

External sales in Sweden relate to gold bullion sold on-
market through National Australia Bank.

The Group’s segments reflect the disaggregation of revenue
by geography and product types as described above.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

"# W A R A& A

B BERSBERS
7S T i 20 T8 A R ) R FEOR
LA WA RS R B R 1 BT

Oy EREARR AL A L2 R A ] A 4 ] ]
AOFILE, > 7 S A 4 B S A IR B
o3 FR SR ELA AR FHELF) 5 B 19 22 ]
[ BEpK I SRR S Bl - DA % L B3 TR SE S
HH B Y SN ER A A o %00 W0 SE AR TR 4
A P PR 2 ) ] DA B T 351 (L ) 2 oA T
AR TS B

ROBCH) A/l B IR a B - AH
e B 73 T8 2065 A TR ) AT 2 T e B S L
7 o

WBERETEEFDE

FESS B AN & B B B Vamimalad: 2
DA FERRETRA B o 25 E SR —1E
FREET R — 2K PR Rk &
B AT ERT TR T WA o

TE IS TR 09 43 B [A] £ 65 B 5 7 Svartliden
IO EE— 2 TS TR AR -

1E By B Ak FR 85 B B 3% 3 National
Australia Bank7E T FHHER S SEAH -

Ak SCRTAEL - AR AR B 3 B i i 4
o PRSI e MR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)  Z=4 BARS IR M =5 (4) 211

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2021412 431 H L4
21. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 21. FHER(E)
Sweden Finland Unallocated Total
i BH KROE £y
2021 2021 2021 2021

20214 20215 202145 20214
AU$’000  AUS$’000  AU$’000  AU$’000
TR TR TR TR

Segment revenue a6
Gold sales to external customers HIMNRE P B EE S 42,729 7,274 - 50,003
Inter-segment sales AR A - 41,074 - 41,074
Elimination of inter-segment revenue &&H43- i 45 - - (41,074)  (41,074)
Total revenue W R 42,729 48,348 (41,074) 50,003
Other revenue Hetug s
Interest revenue sNEn - 2 - 2
Sundry revenue METE K 7 2 5 - 7
Total other revenue Hi4 58 2 7 - 9
Segment interest expense A3 A LB 2 1 - 3
Unallocated interest expense E v willsYEa - - 12 12
Total interest expense MEF X5 2 1 12 15
Depreciation and amortisation P8 R A6 456 5,017 - 5,473
Unallocated depreciation and RO BECATEE K g
amortisation - - 48 48
Exploration expenditure written off B 3 H 4 - 561 - 561
456 5,578 48 6,082
Segment result VaiE 3
Pre-tax segment result BRIl 4R (10,357) 12,897 - 2,540
Income tax expense PSR B 3 - (3,689) - (3,689)
Post-tax segment result BIHEEDIESE (10,357) 9,208 - (1,149)
Unallocated items: AOEEE
Corporate services revenue o~ m IR W 312
Corporate costs YNCIN%S (1,792)
Finance costs I B 2,195
Elimination of inter-company interest, 75348 -PHE 8 4E 1A
expense, and management fees in -~ /> R A ~ B3 K
segment results (cgiited 726
Profit after tax as per the BRRGSBBERMT
Consolidated Statement of BBl &I A
Profit or Loss 292
Sweden Finland  Australia Total
By B oY | BN et
2021 2021 2021 2021

20214 20215 20215 20214
AU$’000  AU$’000  AU$’000  AU$’000

FET FET TR FRR
Non-current assets by geographic it BN BB M
location ERBEE 28487 26,389 325 55,201
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)  Z24 BARSER M =8 (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE

21. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 21. FHER(E)
Sweden Finland Unallocated Total
i Py | KA HEr
2020 2020 2020 2020
2020%F 20204 20204F 20204
AU$'000  AU$'000  AU$'000  AU$'000
Tt TG T T
Segment revenue 2 Ep W ER
Gold sales to external customers N R P 4 48,368 20,887 - 69,255
Inter-segment sales o itikake= - 39,254 - 39,254
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 853 FT U 45 - - (39,254) (39,254)
Total revenue W s 4B 5E 48,368 60,141 (39,254) 69,255
Other revenue Hh
Interest revenue FLE 2 - 6 - 6
Sundry revenue METE IS 7 - 6 - 6
Total other revenue Hih 4% - 12 - 12
Unallocated interest expense AR BB - - 116 116
Total interest expense FERZARE - - 116 116
Depreciation and amortisation B N 713 7,298 - 8,011
Unallocated depreciation and E RIS
amortisation - - 46 46
Exploration expenditure written off  #ift8 b 52 i - 2,381 - 2,381
713 9,679 46 10,438
Segment result it 3
Pre-tax segment result BB Al T 4 (577) 11,363 - 10,786
Income tax expense TSR BH 32 - (316) - (316)
Post-tax segment result BB D EEE (577) 11,047 - 10,470
Unallocated items: FABIER
Corporate interest revenue RISV 100
Corporate costs NS (2,149)
Finance costs B A (121
Elimination of inter-company interest, 7 #5345 *F L8 42 B 1A
expense, and management fees in &) ] LG B S B A R
segment results 1,893
Profit after tax as per the BRRGEABBERMT
Consolidated Statement of BB EER
Profit or Loss 10,193
Sweden Finland Austyalia Total
Hir i vy | M st
2020 2020 2020 2020
20204F 20204 20204F 20204F
AU$'000  AU§'000  AUS'000  AUS'000
Tt T Foe Tt
Non-current assets by geographic &t I2 v EE| A
location FRBEE 1,239 24,928 22,277 48,444
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd) 424 BARBS M= (4) 213

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE20214E12 31 H IR4EE
22. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 22. IREEREE

(i) Hanhimaa Royalty (i) HanhimaafEF|&
The Group has a right to a 2% Net Smelter Return A% 45 ] 5t Agnico Eagle Mines Limited
(“NSR”) on future mineral production from Agnico ([ Agnico Eagle )4 25HJt i Hanhimaa
Eagle Mines Limited (“Agnico Eagle”) with respect B4 TH AR SR W) A R A TR
to the Hanhimaa Gold Project in northern Finland. IO [ % ([ 35 0 JoR [ 3% 1) 2% 1 ] o
Agnico Eagle will have the right to buy back 1 Agnico Eagle % A HE i A AT i ] LA 2.0
percentage point of the 2% NSR at any time for €2.0 T E BT B 5 ] 2% 13 A R ] e )
million cash. T 0 o
The Hanhimaa Gold Project is an early-stage JR2021412 A31H > Hanhimaa#&4:
exploration project as at 31 December 2021 and THE AR R ERER > SRS
therefore the Company has not recognised any R F I LB K [T R
receivables from this agreement, as the risk of reversal L AERAEN A ) G e
is considered significant.

(i) Endomines Royalty (i) Endomines#EX| &
The Group has a right to a 1% Net Smelter Return Ak i H 1 £520064F10 12 H A g
(“NSR”) up to €1.5 million from Endomines Oy fih e i 2l > 74K [ 5 Endomines Oy
with respect to the Mining Properties in the Hattu JiA 25 B R A HattuSchist Beltf £7 i &
Schist Belt in eastern Finland (“Mining Properties”) FE ([ PRTR T |) e T o I e ([ 38
as described in the Purchase Agreement dated 12 PRI ) 1% HER] - ERRA 1.5
October 2006. The NSR is only payable from the HT o 785 B I7EPampal o4 %
Mining Properties, after the Mineral Resource as JE 72y R EIRAE P RAR - A bR m]
defined at the Pampalo Gold Mine, at the date of sale A H PRI E AT o
has been mined.

(iii) Aurion Royalty (iii) AurionfEFR| &
The Group has a right to a 3% Net Smelter Return 7 4E [ ¥ Aurion Resources Limited
(“NSR”) on future mineral production from Aurion 2% B AL 3 Kutuvuoma 1 4 T8 H &
Resources Limited with respect to the Kutuvuoma Silasseka .15 H 1Y A A 0% A= E HEH
Gold Project and Silassekd Vanadium Project in T 6 P[] ([ 3 05 00 1 e 1) 3% A
northern Finland. The Group is also entitled to receive F| o ALEBINA RES A E AW
a bonus payment upon the defining of one million Do A B A 1 i A AR (AR
ounces of gold equivalent material categorised as ORI PR W] B A BT BN 53 A T A
Measured and Indicated and for every additional one AL A (E AT RHBOR AL AT 3K

million ounces of gold equivalent material categorised
as Measured and Indicated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

22. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

(iv)

Svartliden Rehabilitation Provision

In accordance with the Group’s legal requirements,
a provision has been recognised to provide for the
anticipated future rehabilitation costs at Svartliden.
The basis for the provision amount is derived from
the Svartliden Rehabilitation Plan (“Closure Plan”),
which is reviewed and updated as necessary by an
independent external consultant, in accordance with
the Groups Environmental Permit provisions.

In April 2017, work to update the Closure Plan was
completed and, together with comments from the
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) and the
County Administration Board (“CAB”), was submitted
to the Land and Environmental Court (“Court”). While
the scope has not been disputed, the suggested value
of the bond is presently under appeal.

The submitted Closure Plan includes segregating the
potentially acid forming waste rock (“PAF”) from the
non-acid forming waste rock (“NAF”) into separate
cells. The cost of providing an engineered hard
covering of the PAF cells is included in the updated
costings provided to the Court in May 2018.

On 3 September 2019, the Court provided its ruling
on the Closure Plan, whereby the Court:

(@) approved the Company’s investigation reports
supporting the Closure Plan; and

(b) required the Company to increase its existing
rehabilitation collateral security to SEK74.0
million. The increase can take the form of a bank
guarantee and is intended to provide additional
security for an engineered covering of the entire
waste rock area, in the event the entire waste
rock area becomes potentially acid forming. The
Company has appealed this ruling.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

[

%

AR A A

LR PA B R R M RE (4)
HE20214F12H31 HIEFE
22. IREEREE(E)

(iv) SvartlidenfE 2R1%1&

MRPE A L E - R
Svartliden B9 8 71 & 21k 18 2B B A< JiF
FHR R - B SN RER A
Svartliden & 2B 51 &1 ([ & m5T8 1) -
P2 ) B S AR B R AR I AL IR
BT ] R GRS WA L IR 2 B B BT o

2017447 > B EWEFHE W T
fEC &858 i - 3 7 6] BR B R R
(TEPA ) 31T Z H & ([ CAB) &
ARAE T I M B BRI IR e ([ BE ) »
il A I A > (DS Ak
EHATIELE B o

B4R 58 B SIS T ) AL 5 1 VA E R MR Y
JBE 5 ([ PAF ) BLIE MR PEBE & (TNAF )
Ay B A ST AR B o SR PAFRBE tiuik
SRR A T AR 20184E5 A 17]
B R A R AR o

R20194E9 A3 H > 32 e il B BH w1 &1
fEHF D > B > B

(@)  HLHEAL B S EpBF im0 A R A
g &

(b)  BERAL RS A 1R 4K
74,00 # 5w so B o i ay
DASRATIE ORI SOEAT - 3 (fis
i 5% & T el VT IR L) T ) 2y
{1 B e o ) IO T R B
SN o A A AR R |

AF °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

22. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

(iv) Svartliden Rehabilitation Provision (Cont’d)

On 18 November 2019, the Company submitted its
appeal to the Environmental Court of Appeal (“Court
of Appeal”). The Company’s appeal challenged:

(@) the amount of additional collateral security being

requested by the Court;

(b) the permit conditions during the closure phase;

and

(c) the restrictions preventing the CAB from
incrementally returning the Company’s security
bonds as rehabilitation work is progressed.

On 16 December 2019, the Court of Appeal, having
read the Company’s appeal document and grounds
for appeal, granted the Company leave to appeal the
Court’s rulings. On 25 February 2022, the Court of
Appeal determined further studies are required to
reduce the level of uncertainty in the investigations
before it can consider the EPA request for additional

collateral security.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not provided
the additional security required by the Court for
an engineered cover to the entire waste rock area.
The current approved Closure Plan complies with
the known characteristics of the tailings, waste
rock and operations at Svartliden, the value of the
bond proposed by the Company reflects this scope
of work and is supported by calculations using
the rates of local contractors. The Closure Plan
reflects the conditions on the site and the necessary
activities to be undertaken upon closure based on
independent advice of the most likely outcome. In the
event of a fundamental change to the acid forming
characteristics of the NAF waste rock, the Company
may need to provide for an engineered cover of the
entire waste rock area and the additional provision

will be significant.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

ERE IA R MR (4])
HE2021F12A31 H L4
22. IREEREE(E)

(iv) SvartlidenfE 2B #345 (48)

A20194E11 H18H » AN &) [ BRIE
AR ([ EFREEE ) $2H EFf o A
INFEIFRDL N IR R

(@) IKBEER A HS MY HEA 5

(b) SRR B A FF AR IR 5

(c) PBilECABREZEER TAERYIELT -
BARIRA N A A RE IR
il o

R20194E12 16 H » FofEE R 85
EIRN/NCI N S L 3= i I
ANFIZT LFREFA] - J820224F2 A
25H > LERIEBER T EE— S
DLW DI R R o AR
A% JEEPAM RS ME I ZIK -

2021412 A31H > A4 307 4 5t
BT ER S AN B A I s T 2
P2 LR AN G AR W B - Bl
HEE Y B 0 5 AL 7 Svartliden B
W~ B NS B > AR F
eI S T R AR T
B> SR 7B R E T Ay R A
YERSHT o BFHT 3T A B 2 R
A REAO &5 5 > RO T R i K B R
PRI AT o MNAFEE & 1 R M
TE R R AR AR A MES21L » RN H]
A B T TS I B o [l L i
= HEEIMEH SN EE LK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

23. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

a) Exploration commitments
Due to the nature of the Consolidated Entity’s
operations in exploring and evaluating areas of
interest, it is very difficult to accurately forecast the
nature or amount of future expenditure, although
it will be necessary to incur expenditure to retain
present interests in mineral tenements. Expenditure
commitments on mineral tenure for the Consolidated
Entity can be reduced by selective relinquishment
of exploration tenure or by the renegotiation
of expenditure commitments. The approximate
minimum level of exploration requirements to retain
current tenements in good standing is detailed below.

Within one year —HN
One year or later and no later than
five years

A TLAR

b) Capital commitments
Commitments relating to the acquisition of equipment
contracted for but not recognised as liabilities are as
follows:

Within one year —4EN
One year or later and no later

than five years AR

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
AR A R A A

R BB AR R (48
HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
23. BIXAE

a)

AR IAE

b)

AR AR KA

BhERARIE

F A G B B TR DR A A 55 4 A
JrTH R SERBS R AR SR LR
A S DAAR RE B A R RS o EAR B
HERRETE IR AR S H M a8 - 4l
AR SRR I I L M i BB T
B SR > ]k S B B R A
P B SCARE o DU SR 0 IA (0 51
FEAR R B A70R 00 14 AR 4% B LG B4 2 5K
IR e

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$'000
FET TFoT
37 34

136 129

173 163

B EE
SR O R A EOR e sl 2 R (R e
BB RIEWNT

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET T
412 -
1,177 -
1,589 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE20214E12 31 H IR4EE
23. EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS (CONT'D) 23. BASANE ()
c) Short-term lease expense commitments o EHHERZEE
Future operating lease commitments not provided for SN A 77 B 5 S 2 P9 B A 114 R SR AL A
in the financial statements are as follows: BRPEMT -
2021 2020
20216 20204
AU$’000 AU$'000
FET THT
Within one year —4EN 10 9
10 9
d) Remuneration commitments d) FHBNEE N
Commitments for the payment of salaries and other ARARIS e iy H IR AY (00 1 i 5 0
remuneration under long-term employment contracts S 5 B FU At 3 P 7 98 (fEL A i
in existence at the reporting date but not recognised as AR T

liabilities are as follows:

2021 2020

20214 20204

AU$’000 AU$’000

FET TFT

Within one year — N 572 321

One year or later and no later AR AR KON

than five years LA 1,200 -

1,772 321

Amounts disclosed as remuneration commitments YR L B RIE ) SR S M a1 7

include commitments arising from the service N S ARAT BN BTN R S Y = K

contracts of Directors and Executives referred BN B RBS & 40 3 AR 7R IE (DA E

to in note 17 Directors and Executive Officers B Hr I A TR Sy B H R FT A E R K
Remuneration that are not recognised as liabilities FTBLNEFHiW) -

and are not included in the Directors’ or Executives’
remuneration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

b)

Financial risk management policies and objectives
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk
and commodity price risk), credit risk, liquidity
risk, and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks, where considered
appropriate, to minimise potential adverse effects on
financial performance without limiting the Group’s
potential upside.

The Group uses different methods to measure and
manage different types of risks to which it is exposed.
These include monitoring levels of exposure to foreign
currency and gold price risk and assessments of
market forecasts for foreign exchange and gold prices.
Liquidity risk is measured through the development
of rolling future cash flow forecasts at various gold
prices and foreign exchange rates.

Risk management is carried out by executive
management with guidance from the Audit and Risk
Management Committee under policies approved by
the Board. The Board also provides regular guidance
for overall risk management, including guidance on
specific areas, such as mitigating commodity price,
foreign exchange, interest rate and credit risks, by
using derivative financial instruments.

The Consolidated Entity also has a risk management
program to manage its financial exposures that
includes, but is not limited to, the use of derivative
products, principally forward gold sales and foreign
currency contracts. The Company does not enter
financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for trade or speculative purposes.

Primary responsibility for identification and control of
financial risks rests with the Board. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of the risks
identified below, including the setting of limits for
trading in economic derivatives, hedging coverage
of foreign currency and gold, credit allowances,
future cash flow forecast projections and financial
instruments if considered necessary.

Instruments recognised at amounts other than fair
value

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the financial statements at
amortised cost represents their respective net fair
values.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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24, T A

a)

b)

CREMREEBRREE

A JH P S5 fok A 2 ) 6 2 L
Jge TG T B A e M
an EAR R R ) ~ 5 B R - B &
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T 36§ 1Y A SR B > /B4 B 45 T T 6 Y
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A Bl R B R RE E e
JaBg: o
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FAZ LR B2 B a0 T B
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Pl TR 0 2 e L o 7 L A2
TR ALIE B AR P b (A% - SPRE
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SRE E RN SR — TE R P A B
B P R > B (EUAS R fik
AT A ity (T2 3y 2 < i 4 R o
MES &) o A2 w30 0 7y B 5 s S i
FEAR T R S 4 T EL (LR AT AR 4
TH) -

S R A i ST ) P e )
LRAL - ERE G T IR R
171 3 A5 37 1 S B ORI (L4 e
REPHIT A TH A5 BRER ~ SN &
BrhEIE 5 RRBERE
TR e TE (Ui %)) e
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e LA A ST R AR T
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HE2021F12A31 H L4

24. EWMI A (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

c) Fair values for instruments recognised at fair value ¢ BRAVEBEIANIENAFE
The fair values of the financial instruments as well as SR T B A TE A B R IAMEFT S 7L
methods used to estimate the fair market value are TR MRl iy T~ R o
summarised in the table below.

As at 31 December 2021 Asat 31 December 2020
0215128318 202081211318
Valuation ~ Valuation Valuation  Valuation
technique-  technique fechnique- technique
Quoted  market ~non-market Quoted market  non-market
market  observable  observable market  observable  observable
price inputs inputs price inputs inputs
(level)  (level2)  (level3) Total  (evell)  (leveld)  (level3) Total
fefEmk- fhlEE-
ERE- ¥ fBERE- FiiG
nEUER  TEE fiaTEE  TEE
mREE  BARE BAME WERE  BARE  BAME

(F-8) (B E=R gt R Gh B=m) it
AUSO0D  AUS000  AUSO00  AUS000  AUSO00 - AUSO00  AUSO0D  AUS000
TAn A TR AR Tt i T filn

Trade receivables at fair value BATE AR
through profit o loss BhlGR - - - - -4 S4B

LS B 9 I 45 AR ) <z TR T

For financial instruments not quoted in active markets,

the Group uses a valuation technique such as present
value techniques, comparison to similar instruments
for which market observable prices exist and other
relevant models used by market participants. These
valuation techniques use both observable and
unobservable market inputs (Level 2).

Trade receivables relate to concentrate sales that
are still subject to price adjustments where the final
consideration to be received will be determined
based on prevailing London Metals Exchange (“LME”")
metal prices at the final settlement date. Sales that are
still subject to price adjustments at balance sheet date
are fair valued by applying a discounted cash flow
model incorporating credit risk and forward pricing to
estimate the present value of the final settlement price
using the LME forward metals prices at balance date.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
during the year.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
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H o ARELER MG ETTE - EET
& A AE AT T B AR AR L T
HL T 855 2 B (T 199 JFL A A B
PO o B2 AR A (B 5 T AT B AR
AR T S A\ B (B8 ) o

54 HE WS T LAY ] B A 14 M 1
SEEATRR > AFPUORU) e AR AR R
i s o 58 o T ([ A S0 58 2 P 1)
T B BT H AT 1 B AR R
BN A B AT SR A R S > HI
&5 5 A e 8 50 5 i i 1 4
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A TR 55— R BB A [ S AT e
1 -

Annual Report 2021
ZF — — £ FH#



220

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

d)

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the loss that would be
recognised if counterparties failed to perform as
contracted. The Group’s maximum exposures to
credit risk at reporting date in relation to each class of
financial asset is the carrying amount of those assets as
indicated in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position.

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit risk
predominantly arises from cash, cash equivalents,
derivative financial instruments, deposits with banks
and financial institutions and receivables.

While the Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of its products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history, the Group does have a
concentration of credit risk in relation to its gold
concentrate sales in Finland due to dependence for a
significant volume of its sales revenues on one buyer.
There is generally a six-week turnaround between
shipment of gold concentrate and payment from a
gold concentrate customer. The Company reduces its
credit risk in relation to gold concentrate receivables
in Finland by insuring 90% of the nominal value of
an assigned or internal invoice with a reputable high
credit quality Nordic financial institution.

However, as invoices are raised at the end of each
month and shipments occur frequently throughout
the month, there is credit exposure to the smelting
company for the value of one month of shipments as
insurance coverage commences when an invoice is
raised. Credit risk further arises in relation to financial
guarantees given to certain parties. Such guarantees
are only provided in exceptional circumstances and
are subject to Board approval.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

In relation to managing other potential credit risk
exposures, the Group has in place policies that aim
to ensure that derivative counterparties and cash
transactions are limited to high credit quality financial
institutions and that the amount of credit exposure
to any one financial institution is limited as far as

is considered commercially appropriate.

quality of financial assets that are neither past due
nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external

o A 20 A PR R ()

HE20214E12 31 H IR4ERE

24. EWMI A (&)

d) FERRE)

The credit

credit ratings (if available) or to historical information

about counterparty default rates:

Cash and cash equivalents
Counterparties with external credit ratings
AA-

A

Total cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Counterparties with external credit ratings
AAA
AA-
A+
A-
Counterparties without external
credit ratings
Counterparties with no defaults in the past

Total trade and other receivables

For the purposes of determining credit

on receivables, receivable amounts that have been
factored are evaluated against the credit rating of the

R BB 5 B R By T - AR SR
B L FHBRBOK > B AERELRAT A T
HAZ oy 1 T Je Bl 28 oy R R 5 4
R AR o i EL P TR R 9 A —
5 4 AR 1Y) 1 BB A B 2% 52 21 7
F LR SRR o AR IR R
{EL A <l B 7 A (5 BB ] 278 5hak
fRRERHR (WA A B T2 5 %

) JER S {5 B TR
2021 2020
20215 20204
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET TFoC
HERREEEY
FH Il E BRI F o
AA- 14,370 14,352
A - _
B4 J B 4 SR ) AR 14,370 14,352
B REMmEWRE
F il G BRER I EHF 7
AAA 1,124 782
AA- 12 _
A+ - -
A— - _
S| e 5 BEREAR Y
HF
A AR A BT 4,089 5,496
B 5y J HA E WSO A AR 5,225 6,278

exposures

factoring bank, where the factored amount is insured.

Environmental and other bonds
Counterparties with external credit ratings
AAA
Counterparties without external

credit ratings
Counterparties with no defaults in the past

Total trade and other receivables
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HOAE R A R A A

RERHMRES

A EB G PR i85 F I

AAA

HESF b 5 B AR AT
HFIr

LN I K 1 TF 07

B 5 e HAt R W AR AR

5,287

38 R MR 5 ST R - LR
1) M 30 R R 40 (0
BT (5 X RPAAE T R -

5,544

5,287

5,544
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

e)

Sard
o

G B R M ()
HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
24, EWMI A (&)

Interest Rate Risk e FIEE
At balance date, the Group had the following NEESEH > AR DL T A 2R
financial assets and liabilities exposed to interest rate JEUBg B AR 15 6 27 B 4 ko o 10 4
risk that are not designated as cash flow hedges: Al S B
2021 2020
2015 2020
Floating Fixed Average  Floating Fixed Average
interest rate  interest rate Total  intrate interestrate interestrate Total int.rate
FRHE  EEAE a PERE O EBAR O EENE B PRE
Financial assets SREE
Cash and cash equivalents” 54 RE A% E 14,370 - 14370 =% 1435 - 14332 o
Trade receivables - fair value ~ ff/A izt AR
through profit or loss B MElEE - - - % 4153 - 4153 %
Environmental bonds RIVER 5,287 - 5,287 % 5,544 - 5,544 %
19,657 - 19,657 =% 24,049 - 24,049 %
Financial liabilities ERAR
Interest bearing liabilites AT - - - % - 3,000 3000 4.00%
Lease liabilities fEAR - 2013 2,013 % - 364 364 %
- 2,013 2,013 % - 3,364 3,364 %
(1) Includes AU$6.6 million restricted use net proceeds from the (1) AFER AN AR20214:1 H22 H 84T A9 Ay
Company’s Placement of Shares issued on 22 January 2021. i 85 ) B 1 T e P A5 R P 3 6.6 71 BB o
The Group’s policy is to manage its exposure to AR Y BURGZ @ i 1 A7 5 W Bl
interest rate risk by holding cash in short term, fixed TEAG B R 10 s B E R S R
and variable rate deposits with reputable high credit JHRC 8] 2 AR 5T AT 558 | AR A RO A B
quality financial institutions. T i PO ) 2 L
The Group constantly analyses its interest rate ALEEAB AT AR Hh
exposure. Consideration is given to potential renewals %GBT TETE A - DALY
of existing positions, alternative financing and/or the B e SR A E B R BRI .
mix of fixed and variable interest rates.
Foreign exchange risk ) SMNER

As the Group sells its bullion and gold concentrate
in USD and the majority of costs are denominated in
Swedish Krona (SEK) and Euro (EUR), an appreciating
EUR and SEK, or a weakening USD exposes the
Group to risks related to movements in the USD:SEK
and USD:EUR exchange rates.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. The risk can be measured by
performing a sensitivity analysis that quantifies the
impact of different assumed exchange rates on the
Group’s forecast cash flows.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

[

%

AR

A

PR A AS A 1 DL 5 T B e SR B s
TR > T FR 73 A D i 4 o ) A ik
JLHRHE > FE L > Bk & 5 8 v B T
{6 > SSETCHZ(E > & (AR [l
B3 I 51 B 4 v (99 % 5 70 S KOT HE R
538 B A BT P JEL g

SMMEEU RS B R SERS 5y > LK
DUE#E DR & W LASh I B R HE R 2
TR R B o P DA AR A T R
BEo AT A AL AN TR 1 M1 % B SR 3 A4
T T S0 < 7 ) A A R A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

f)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

As part of the risk management policy of the Group,
financial instruments (foreign exchange forwards)
may be used from time to time to reduce exposure
to unpredictable fluctuations in the USD:SEK and
USD:EUR exchange rates. Within this context,
programs undertaken are structured with the
objective of minimising the Group’s exposure to these
fluctuations.

The value of any financial instruments at any point in
time will, in times of volatile market conditions, show
substantial variation over the short-term. The facilities
provided by the Group’s various counterparties do not
contain margin calls.

The Company and Group’s financial performance
is also affected by movements in AUD:SEK and
AUD:EUR. In accordance with the requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards, exchange
gains and losses on intercompany loans that do
not form part of the Company’s net investment in
foreign operations are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company did not enter or hold any foreign exchange
derivatives. At balance date, the Group had the
following significant exposure to foreign currencies:

USD exposure ErRER

Entity with Euro functional currency

A BB AR e (48
HE20214E12 31 H IR4ERE
24. SRITR(E)

f)

LU E 23 T RER AT

V¢

Cash and cash equivalents Bl N Bl S5 EY)

Trade receivables B 5 EWIIE

Entity with AUD functional currency LRI IE 23 DI RE B 10T
Vi

Trade payables ¥ 7 e 3

Entity with SEK functional currency LA B . 56 B TE 2% T R
By E

Cash and cash equivalents Bl KBS EEY)

Trade receivables B o MEWCEK A

Trade payables B 5 AL R

Net USD Exposure K TC L 13

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

SN LBk ()

P T 74 B2 8 o e PR SR ) — 00
A B AT BE A R 8 1) < i T L (A1 B
G > DL SR I 5 B i e
J2 5 0 i e BEE 25 AN ] T 030 38 114
B o EBLIEULT > BRERTEIA H AR R
R R JBE A 52 D T T 119 5% 458
B JE -

AT AT 4 T 5L AT 0] R S8 4 (L2
J T Dot 8 8l A e B A R D ) o
AR AR [ 456 F 5 SRR RV E S BB
JnRES: -

AR ) B AR S P ) B B 3R B 32 B IR
T 5 B 4t e B % W S K e S B 1 5
B o MR B O AR BUE
AR AR O R D SERS TR A — T
G O 5 1 A ) ) R B S S S
AR AR A 1R 2 R RERT

HE20214E12 31 HIE4EE > AN
) M 4 BT ST SRR A AT AT A1 RE AT AR T
H o A gEA R > AEBEBATIIEK
AR

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FHET T¥oC
6,330 9,991
13,822 12,480

- 9)

26 74

1,192 58

(9,244) (7,571)
12,126 15,023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)  Z24 BARSER M =8 (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

f)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

EUR exposure
Entity with AUD functional currency

Cash and cash equivalents

Intercompany loan

Trade payables

Entity with SEK functional
currency

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade payables

Net EUR Exposure

AUD exposure
Entity with EUR functional currency

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables

Intercompany loan

Entity with SEK functional currency

Trade payables
Intercompany loan

Net AUD Exposures

HKD exposure
Entities with AUD functional currency

Cash and cash equivalents

Other receivables
Trade payables

Net HKD Exposure

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

AR A A

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
24, EWMI A (H)
f) SERKE)

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$’000
FET T¥o
& T /=L B
LIMETCAE 24 2 E B 114
B
B4 KB 4558 36 10
SE[H] AN F R Bk - 13,714
& 5 EAT A - (95)
LA T 5 B 25 T RE
LU B
B4 KB &5EY) 8 2
& 5 AT ERIE (89) (6)
R L g 3 A (45) 13,625
BT ERE
LARKTT TF 2% 20 RE B 1Y
B
B4 M &% EY) 364 1
H 5 MEWGRIE - 359
S B A 2 A ] Rk (5,934) -
LA T 5 B TE 25 L) BE
L B
& 5 AT R IE 31 -
AT N/NTE S S8 (25,134) (18,874)
BT JE B 1 (30,735) (18,514)
78 T EL
LAMETE T 25 0 E B 109
i
B4 KB 58 6,217 -
FHoAth JRE i A 684 -
E 5 AT 3R (6) )
5 T R B AR 6,895 )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

g) Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to movements in the gold price.
As part of the risk management policy of the Group, a
variety of financial instruments (such as gold forwards
and gold call options) may be used from time to time
to reduce exposure to unpredictable fluctuations in
the project life revenue streams. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Company did not enter or
hold any commodity derivatives (31 December 2020:

nil).

The Group is exposed to commodity price volatility
on the sale of gold in concentrate which is priced
on, or benchmarked to, open market exchanges,
specifically the London Metal Exchange (“LME"). The
exposure is outlined as trade receivables — fair value
through profit or loss in note 5.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

A BB AR e (48
HE20214E12 31 H IR4ERE
24, EWMI A (H)

g

ERERRR

AAE B 1H B A A s B () R » VE B AR
A5 ] B BRIEOR 10— 880 > ANEEE
A] BEAS R 45 A 4 il T B (an 4
m A K L AR IRE) > LUK
TELH 2 Wi s 0 A AS ] T8 3500 38 80 1) e
Mo # % 20214E12 431 H IF4EFE -
AN RN T S B RE A AT A P S AT A
T H (2020412 H31H : 48) -

G Bt B SR RS i R AT G T
B MG B B 19 R B > % 4 E AR A
B T 353 22 o e (G 2 A 350 0 22
v (T ff 046 J 22 5 e 1) ) s LA G 2
R S AH o A7 B B MR A B 5 T
B o BEWGHIH — ¥ (B FE AR i 51

=
H ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)  Z24 BARSER M =8 (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

[

%

h)

Sensitivity analysis

The following tables summarise the sensitivity of
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities to interest
rate risk and foreign exchange risk. Had the relevant
variables, as illustrated in the tables, moved, with
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit and
equity would have been affected as shown. The

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE
24, EWMI A (&)

hy BRBREDN
BN R AR B 1 O L B
S50 5 J gt L 1 HEE JRL gt ) O E -
RS > A B RS > A H
fto B AT N > BREUAR I A1) LM AR
GREEE MU THR) o R EFH%
IR HE HEAEAT o0 AT

analysis has been performed on the same basis for the

prior year.

31 December 2021

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables — fair value

through profit or loss
Government bonds

Total (decrease)/increase

31 December 2020

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables - fair value

through profit or loss
Government bonds

Total (decrease)/increase

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

AR A A

B RREFED
TR AR

B kREFED
HNFERH AR

(WD) /A

2021F12H31H
Interest rate risk -0.25% Interest rate risk +0.25%
Fl=EE-0.25% FZ=E E+0.25%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
yeyil R eyl i
Note AU$/000 AU$/000 AU$/000 AU$/000
i3 TR TR TRz TR
1 (36) (36) 36 36
) _ _ _ _
4 (13) (13) 13 13
(49) (49) 49 49
20204F12H31H
Interest rate risk —0.25% Interest rate risk +0.25%
FIZ B —0.25% FZRFR+0.25%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
i Al i i 3o
Note AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000
i3 Filo Filo Tl Fie
1 (36) (36) 36 36
2 (10) (10) 10 10
4 (14) (14) 14 14
(60) (60) 60 60
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

h) Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

Ao B P B AR I e ()

HE20214E12 31 H IR4ERE

24. EWMI A (&)

hy ®BEZH &)

Foreign exchange -10%

Foreign exchange +10%

SNE-10% SE+10%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
Al i A i
Note AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000
(i3 TR FRx TRAx TR
31 December 2021 2021F12A318
Financial assets %Eﬁﬁﬁ
Cash and cash equivalents S RHE %}F"% 1 (640) (640) 640 640
Trade and other receivables %\’Eyﬁﬁﬁﬁ}@lﬁl H 2 (1,501) (1,501) 1,501 1,501
Intercompany loans SE T o A A B 3 (3,107 (3,107) 3,107 3,107
Financial liabilities StRAE
Trade payables ) ANE 933 933 (933) (933)
Total (decrease)/increase (B) /s mssE 4,315) 4,315) 4,315 4,315
Foreign exchange -10% Foreign exchange +10%
SIE—10% SMEE+10%
Profit Equity Profit Equity
i A1 g kil g
Note AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000 AU$'000
Bk T T T T
31 December 2020 2020124318
Financial assets %Eﬂﬁg
Cash and cash equivalents S REE fy{“"’% 1 (1,008) (1,008) 1,008 1,008
Trade and other receivables %ZE;&,JMEL{& I 2 (1,263) (1,263) 1,263 1,263
Intercompany loans SER AR R 3 (1,371) (1,371) 1371 1371
Financial liabilities SRER
Interest bearing liabilities & f1f& 59 59 (59) (59)
Intercompany loans A 8] 7R ) R Bk 1,887 1,887 (1,887) (1,887)
Total (decrease)/increase (WD) /s (1,696) (1,696) 1,696 1,696
1. Cash and cash equivalents include deposits at call at floating 1. BaekBE&%E %@,ﬁ?’“#ﬁbﬂ}iﬁiﬂ
and short-term fixed interest rates. A1 7 I A L 0 17 4
2. Trade receivables include AU$3.1 million (2020: AU$5.0 2 4 5 WE WSO T 6456 DA 35 JT R (E 1 40
million) of gold in concentrate and gold doré receivables Fo 5 B4 RENGR A 3.1 B T (2020
denominated in USD. After year end, the Company received 5.0 BT o NMERE > AT
payment for all USD denominated gold concentrate and doré W T A A 95 70 R 606 B % 5 L
trade receivables. 2 5 MEWCERTE A5 3 o
3. Intercompany loans are denominated in AUD and SEK. 3. SRR D IR K AR G R i 0 s TR
Though these loans are eliminated upon consolidation, {8 o ﬁ%éﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ ERIERIE
changes in the value of the loans due to movements in B > LR i B A8 Bl 1 | 2R 5 A (E B
exchange rates will influence the consolidated result, since A A A A AR
exchange gains or losses on intercompany loans that do not H S T A g A S I AR — R 0 4
form part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign I A 2 ) D R B S 28 s 4R A
operation are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of GRS R HERE
Profit or Loss.
4. Interest bearing environmental cash bonds that have 4. WAEAF O H K% S5 BT BUT M Y S

historically been deposited with Swedish and Finnish
government authorities.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

BRBIE S -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

i)  Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the financial liabilities of the
Group and the Group’s subsequent ability to meet
its obligations to repay its financial liabilities as and
when they fall due.

The Consolidated Entity’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank loans and equity raisings.

The contractual maturities of the Group’s financial
liabilities are as follows:

R BB AR R (48
HE2021F12A31 H IEFE

24. €@ T A (&)

) RBESER
U S A A R ) < L
DA B A SR P i A% JE A7 3 05 (8 7 31
A ENEETT -

£ BRI F B S 0 64T B0
PG 4 A I
B4 -

AEH ARSI AWT

2021 2020

20214 20204

AU$’000 AU$’000

FRT T

Within one year —4EN 7,937 7,319
Within a period of more than one year —4ELL FAE N A AR Y

but not exceeding two years AR 1,391 3,217

9,328 10,536

Management and the Board monitor the Group's
liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash
flow. The information that is prepared by senior
management and reviewed by the Board includes:

e Bi-annual cash flow budgets;

e  Bi-annual cash flow forecasts; and

e  Bi-annual cash flow forecasts.

25. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER YEAR END

On 18 November 2019, the Company lodged an appeal
in the Swedish Environmental Court of Appeal (“Court of
Appeal”) against the U1, U2 and U3 rulings by the Swedish
Environmental Court. On 25 February 2022, the Court
of Appeal provided its rulings including a determination
that further studies are required to reduce the level of
uncertainty in the investigations before it can consider the
Swedish Environmental Protection Agency’s request for
additional collateral security (U3). The Company is in the
process of obtaining further legal advice on the rulings to
determine the appropriate course of action.

On 1 March 2022, the Company extended the expiry
date of its AU$12.0 million loan facility with AP Finance
Limited from 31 December 2022 to 30 June 2023. All
other terms and conditions remain unchanged.

On 11 March 2022, the Main Court Hearing in relation
to the Faboliden Environmental Permit scheduled for 14
March 2022, was deferred to an unknown date in April
2022.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

[

%

BoA R

A

B R AR SR
PEASE B IR B B R o s A
i@%ﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬂa?ﬁ$‘%%ﬁﬁ%§ﬂ@
5o

o CHEBIGWEEE
o CEEHIEWEEE K&
o CRAEDIEWETI

25. FREBEEKREIER

A20194E11 H18 H » A4 ) il I d B
EBERIUT ~ U2 R USRI FE P > ) Hi i
55 E ik b ([ LaRikpe D) 28 Edr o
202242 H25H » EEMEBiEE  FEHE
Fity L BR 55 O o =) R AR AMILH FH (U3) AT
BB HEAERAWITT » WD P AT
P o AHE LR PG T 2R A L
DARE R AT T o

5%
w

202243 A1 H » A% A AP Finance
Limited 1 12.0'F 5 o &3 BilE 19 2 3] B
2022412 H31 H#E R £202346 H 30
H o i HAth sk B ek M Re AN s o

7202243 H11H » B Faboliden IR 5%
R kR A 20224F3 H 14 H ZE
2022448 > HMRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

26. PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURE

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant, and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment in subsidiaries
Intercompany loans

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Interest bearing liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions
Interest bearing liabilities

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
EH B AR A A

o A 20 A PR R ()

HE20214E12 31 H IR4ERE

26. BNRERHE

RBEE
Bl kB e EY)
5 5 K HA EISGRIA
Hopb e

RBEERE
FRBEE

UE R & ]
o P
SR B 2 ]
B B A 2 ] [ B
FRBEERE
EEMAE

REBEE

B 5y T FAb e 3K0H
]

FHEAM

RBRERE

FRBRME
]
it A

FRBEBERE
REHARE
BEFE

R

TRBA

frt e

E i

DA

229

2021 2020
20215 20204F
AU$’000 AU$'000
FET T
6,369 2,189
758 90

121 75
7,248 2,354
148 146

177 161
4,479 26,842
31,069 18,874
35,873 46,023
43,121 48,377
10,870 1,293
275 158

71 39
11,216 1,490
10 149

111 3,124

121 3,273
11,337 4,763
31,784 43,614
140,458 133,991
(583) 434
(108,091) (90,811)
31,784 43,614
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

26. PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURE (CONT’D)

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive
profit for the year

At 31 December 2020

At 1 January 2021

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss
for the year

Issue of shares net of
transaction costs

Share buy-back and cancellation

At 31 December 2021

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

[

%

WA R A& A

#2020%1818

Ll
HftraA

Myt e M A

#2020512F318

R2021%1818

R
Hitgr iR

LA R

b >
LA

M 1 8 B

R2021512A318

ok A 5 A R R (

)

HE2021F12A31 H IEFE

26. FNRERHEE (&)

Convertible
Contributed ~ Accumulated Note Premium Other Total
Equity Losses Reserve Reserves Equity
TEAZE
EHRA ZiERE wERE Hitfdts ERAH
AU$000 AU$'000 AU$000 AU$'000 AU$'000
T T T T T
133,991 (99,576) 2,068 (2,373) 34110
- 8,765 - - 8,765
- - - 739 739
- 8,765 - 739 9,504
133,991 (90,811) 2,068 (1,634) 43,614
133,991 (90,811) 2,068 (1,634) 43,614
- (17,280) - - (17,280)
- - - (983) (983)
- (17,280) - (983) (18,263)
6,637 - - - 6,637
(170) - - (34) (204)
140,458 (108,091) 2,068 (2,651) 31,784
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Financial Summary

The results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years, as extracted from the Group’s
published Consolidated Financial Statements are set out below:

Results

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Basic (loss)/earnings
per share

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity
Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

DRAGON MINING LIMITED
HOAE R A R A A

N (E1R)
i A

DA LR
E/NIE SN

RRBEEA (518)
/TR

EERAE

R AE
A A

4 A0
E/AGE 2PN
HEAHE 2

S B

7S JH 7S F A0 A P BB JBE Y SRR DL R E M
BRI Bk A AL I 2 2 558 B TR )
FIIR -

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31HLFE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174F 20184 20194 20204 20215
AU$’000  AU$'000  AU$'000  AU$’000  AU$’000
T T T THoo FET
41,270 37,850 53,073 69,255 50,003
(583) (9,531) 6,311 10,193 292
(583) (9,531) 6,311 10,193 292
(0.66) (9.90) 4.55 7.34 0.19
As at 31 December
M12H831H

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 20215
AU$’000  AU$’000  AU$’000  AU$000  AU$000
T T#o T Tt FET
50,349 62,750 78,633 85,397 95,300

(18,990) (25,303)

(35,269)

(31,919) (35,331)

31,359 37,447

43,364

53,478 59,969
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Tenement Register RERS B HC it
Held at 31
December
2021
%
R2021F
Tenement's 12A31H
Project ID Name Type BERA Area ha Expiry
EE % EEEE Lpid) % AEQE )i
SWEDEN
bk}
Svartliden Svartlidengruvan  EC 100 87.54 10 April 2027
Knr1 HIREE 2027447 10H
Faboliden Faboliden Knr1  EC 100 122.00 3 June 2029
AT 2029F6H3H
2016 - 75 Fabolidennr 11 EP 100 836.26 4 August 2023
HnR T TR 2023%8H4H
Faboliden nr 84  EP 0 959.33 *
B T
FINLAND
=Y |
Orivesi 2676 Orivesi MC 100 39.82 Valid Until Further Notice
TR B0 BERTER
ML2013 : 0006 Sarvisuo 1-2 EP 100 41.10 28 January 2023
MR R 2023414280
ML2015 : 0026 Sarvisuo 3 EPA 100 46.51 *
B
VA2020 : 0021 Ori RES 100 1979.73 26 March 2022
fRE 20224F3H26H
Jokisivu 7244 Jokisivu MC 100 48.32  Valid Until Further Notice
IRIEFFRT B3O HERTER
KL2015 : 0005 Jokisivu 2 MC 100 21.30 Valid Until Further Notice
TR B0 BERTER
KL2018 : 0010 Jokisivu 3 MC 100 8.97  Valid Until Further Notice
IRIEFRRT B0 HERTER
ML2012 = 0112 Jokisivu 4-5 EP 100 85.76 4 October 2022
bR AT 20224F10H4H
ML2017 : 0131 Jokisivu 7-8 EPA 100 10.22 *
BRI
ML2018 : 0082 Jokisivu 10 EPA 0 900.33 ok
R
Kaapelinkulma ~ K7094 Kaapelinkulma ~ MC 100 65.10  Valid Until Further Notice
TRIERRT B0 HERTER
Palssa VA2021 : 0066 Palssa RES 100 5,147.79 23 October 2023
R 2023%10A23H
Uunimaki ML2020 : 0020 Uunimaki 1 EPA 0 89.22 o
B
Vammala 1895 Stormi MC 100 157.53 Valid Until Further Notice
TR RT B0 BEERTER
KL2021 = 0001 Stormi 2 MCA 0 3.08 o
RORRERTH
Note: [(TE
*  Areas subject to renewal application. o AfRFEAA SR L o

**  Areas subject to full application.

DRAGON MINING LIMITED

HEO'E R AR

A

o AR H R L -
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